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OVERSIGHT OF GALLAUDET COLLEGE AND
THE NATIONAL TECHNICAL INSTITUTE FOR
THE DEAF

TUESDAY, JUNE 11, 1985

U.S. SENATE,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON THE HANDICAPPED,
CoMMITTEE ON LABOR AND HUMAN RESOURCES,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, at 9:30 a.m., in room SR 428-A, Russell
Senate Office Building, Senator Lowell P. Weicker, Jr. (chairman
of the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Senators Weicker and Nickles.

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR WEICKER

Senator WEICKER. This oversight hearing has been convened to
review the accomplishments, current status, and future direction of
Gallaudet College and the National Technical Institute for the
Deaf [NTID). Both of these schools provide clgfh quality services for
deaf students, services that address a critical need, services which
are clearly a Federal responsibility.

Congress has provided virtually all the funding for Gallaudet
College for over 120 years, and for NTID since 1965. As chairman
of both this Subcommittee on the Handicapped and the Appropria-
tions Subcommittee which funds these programs, I can certainly
testify to the high quality services they offer. Since there has never
been any formal congressional oversight by Congress—other than
appropriations hearings—the Subcommittee on the Handicapped
has set agide this time to examine these fine programs in depth,
and that is what we will do today.

In preparation for this oversight hearing, I requested that GAO
conduct a study of Gallaudet and NTID—a study to examine how
these programs are accomplishing their missions.

I look forward to hearing GAO’s recommendations today, as well
ag those of Dr. Lee, president of Gallaudet, and Dr. Castle, director
of NTID. I know that all of you responsible for these programs
have spent considerable effort in self-evaluation activities prompt-
ed by these oversight hearings.

Many changes have occurred in deaf education in the last 20
years. For example, when Congress created NTID in 1965, there
were only five other postsecondary programs in the entire country
with formal programs for the deaf. At that time, Gallaudet and
NTID served more than 80 percent of the deaf students and grant-
ed almost all of the academic degrees. Today, there are over 100
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such programs, many of them very successful. In 1970, more than
70 percent of the deaf high school graduates in this country came
from residential schools for the deaf—totally segregated from their
hearing peers. Today, less than 30 percent of deaf high school grad-
uates come from residential schools—the overwhelming majority
are now mainstreamed into high school programs with their hear-
ing peers.

As Doctors Lee and Castle have been noting for sometime, these
monumental ¢ es in the philosophy, practice and legal aspects
of deaf education have significant implications for Gallaudet and

. These changes do not mean that the Federal Government no
longer needs to support these fine schools—indeed, the need for
Federal support for deaf education is as great as ever. These
changes do mean that the missions and activities of Gallaudet and
NTID will have to continue to adjust to meet the challenge of the
future. I look forward to hearing more about how we can assist
Gallaudet and NTID in meeting the challenge of the fu*ure.

Our first witness will be Mrs. Madeleine Will, Assisiant -

tary for Special Education and Rehabilitative Services. I u
ly appreciate Mrs. Will being willing to juggle her e+ - b
with us today. I know that you have to be over on it» . at
to testify at 10:30, and we will be sure to finish in p} .- -

for you to do that.

I gather Madeleine is not here yet. Is that correct? She ig .:: the
way. I gather she has an appointment in the House at 10:30. I
think that since we are on a tight schedule here, we will have the
GAO testify first. I am sure we can hear this testimony and then
go;f?til on with Madeleine and make sure that Madeleine still gets out
of here.

So we have before us William Gainer, is that correct?

Mr. GAINER. Yes, sir. '

Senator WEICKER. Mr. Gainer, on April 19, 1984, I requested the
General Accounting Office to do a study about Gallaudet College
and NTID. Among other things I asked for the cost of the services
provided at each school and placement rates of students.

Today, we have Mr. William Gainer, who is an Associate Direc-
tor of GAO’s Human Resources Division, and he is here to review
the findings of their report which was released last March 22nd.

Mr. Gainer, why do you not introduce \your colleagues and pro-
ceed. Your report is part of the record. Your statement will be a
part of the record. y do youv not introduce ¥our colleagues, and
if you can go ahead and give us an overview of the matters accom-
plished by GAO.

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM J. GAINER, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR,
HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION, GENERAL ACCOUNTING
OFFICE, ACCOMPANIED BY JAY EGLIN, GROUP DIRECTOR IN
CHARGE OF EDUCATION AND EDUCATION PROGRAMS; AND
DEBORAH EISENBERG, PROJECT DIRECTOR

Mr. GAINER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

On my left is Mr. Jay Eglin, who is the Group Director in charge
of all of our work on education programs. On my right is the
Project Manager for this particular study, Ms. Deborah Eisenberg.
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C r testimony today focuses on two issues: the cost of educati:f
L - undary students and the number of srudents enrolled at Gal-
audet <-iege and the National Technical Institute for the Deaf.
We will also commen: ~n the Departrer* of Education’s oversight
of these institutions.
Using the latest . u:lsble data for ~omparison purposes, we

found that compared wi.h similar types of -''s serving nonhear-
ing_impaired students, which is real': the oniy comparison we
could make, both Gallaudet and the Jechr. -atitute cost or

student were substantiallu{ above those of other - ate arn:' ;» Ylic
institutions. Student-faculty ratios were two to three and ope-half
times lower at Gallaudet and NTID than at other postsecondary
schools. In_addition, compared with other public and p~ivai-
schools, Gallaudet’s and I‘FI‘II)'s 1983-84 average annual facul.y
compensation was lower. In addition, we found that from 1981 to
1984, Gallaudet College had many unoccupied beds in its dormito-
ries, including 192, which is 12 percent, in the fall of 1984. In the
fall of 1984, Gallaudet’s Model Secondary School for the Deaf was
almost 100 students below its student enrollment capacity of 450.
School officials told us that Gallaudet needs to improve its recruit-
ment efforts to increase the pool of qualified applicants, and attrib-
ultled t}tLe Model School’s underenrollment to a lack of qualified ap-
plicants.

On the other hand, in the fall of 1984, the Technical Institute ex-
ceeded its desigrated capacity by 69 students.

Gallaudet College offers associate’s, bachelor’s, master’s, and doc-
tor’s degrees. In fiscal g;ear 1984, Gallaudet College received $37.1
million in tederal funds, which comprised about 75 percent of its
total revenue. The Technical Institute, on the other hand, concen-
trates on associate’s degrees, bt its students can also receive bach-
elor’s degrees and master’s des; - » from the Rochester Institute of
Technology, which is its hoet . :aization. In the fall of 1984,
NTID had about 1,300 students.

To compare expenditures at Gallaudet College and NTID with
other institutions of similar size and programs, we used the most
recent information available from the her Education General
Information Survey, which is compiled by the Department of Edu-
cation. Gallaudet College’s cost per student at about $24,000 was
five times higher than the average cost per student for 259 similar-
ly classified gublic institutions, and three times higher than the av-
erage for 160 private institutions. Gallaudet’s cost ger student was
twice as high as the median cost per student for 19 similarly sized
institutions which Gallaudet considers to be similar to them, which
have the highest total cost per student in the United States.

At NTID, the total cost per student of about $19,771 per year was
six times higher than the average cost per student at similar classi-
fied vocational-educational institutions, and about twice the cost
pei' student at its host institution, the Rochester Institute of Tech-
nology.

Because of the uniqueness of Gallaudet and the NTID’s pro-
grams, we found it very difficult to reach any conclusion about the
reasonableness of their costs. However, certain of their expenses,
for example, research and public service, could probably be legiti-
mately excluded from their education mission, thus lowering their
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cost by a few thousand - :lars pe= »i - . ~«ar, This would not
change our conclusion it the costs .. . ..:ntially above com-
parable institutions.

Officials at Gallaudet Col'cye and NTID s'so attribute their
school’s higher cost per student in pert to the schools’ comparative-
ly lower student-faculty ratice. whick they beli- » are necessary to
carry out an educational .- ram for the de«¢ fo gain some in-
sight on this, we again uss - iata from the Dw ent of Educa-
tion. In the school years ™ .. to 1982, Gali: ‘det’s student-faculty
ratio was about seven to .-e It has sin = increased slightly.
NTID’s was eight to one - 8 i.screased sli, htlg since that time.

Gallaudet’s student-i, atis was o ird of the average
ratio, which wes 21 to 1. Uer pubsic ar  jrivate institutions,
and about half that nf t* = _..au salic fart - 19 high cost schools
that I mentioned e’a‘r'i v

Similarly, NTIT t wax  third of similar institu-
tions. Its student! . "+« ¢, less than half that of
its host instituti »¢ . i 21 to 1. Costs are also
affected by facu - wa - i{a *. + cuse, the average at Gal-
loudet $82,400 an ! - ake ot NTE . $80,900, were just slight-
ly lowar than comypait. *0rs 0 - the hearing.

It should be pote.. * . -+«~cugh their costs are a little
lower. the average -n Tow .-ty tends to be a little lower
than thowe of oth: < sc.-« ."* . i they have more instructors pro-
portionately than they av: . ,.nessors.

Regarding residential enrviiment, we found that from 1981 to
1984, Gallaudet College had a considerable number of unoccupied
spaces in its dormitories. For example, 192 unoccupied beds or
about 12 percent of those available in 1984. Conversely in the fall
of 1984, exceeded its 1,250 designated deaf student capacity
by 69 ::udenta, and had a waiting list of 87 additional qualified ap-
plicants.

As regards education oversight, Gallaudet College, its elementary
schools and secondarl; schools, and NTID have a rather unique re-
lationship with the Federal Government. Although many institu-
tions receive financial aid indirectly, these are among the very few
which receive a budget directly from the Department of Education.

Annually for each of the institutions, the Department’s Budget
Systems Division receives their budget requests, and formulates the
Secretary’s budget, prepares budget submissions, prepares the justi-
fication for the Congress, and then testifies before the Appropria-
tiop« Committees, Periodically through the year, staff from that di-
visi * meet with officials from these institutions and visit their
ce.. - ses to assure that the institutions’ budget requests are rea-
gon: ie. and that the schools spend the budgets as planned.

How. ver, the Department’s Buc{dget Division does not have the
expertise to review programs for deaf education and does not at-
tempt to monitor or evaluate the four schools’ academic programs.

e Office of Inspector General also has review authority, but
has done limited work at both institutions.

In sum, the Department of Education generally oversees finan-
cial and budgetary metters pertaining to the four institutivns, but
these institutions have not been subjected to any systemic or peri-
odic program evaluation. It appears that the only independent

8
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monitoring of program operations at these institutions is largely
conducted by the Congress through oversight by this and other
Congressional committees. If program evaluation of these institu-
tions is considered desirable by the subcommittee—and we believe
such evaluation is consistent with good management practice—
then you may wish to develop a more systematic evaluation strate-
gy, and we would be glad to work with the subcommittee in doing

80.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Gainer follows:]
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Susmary of GAO Testimeny Befors the Seunste Subcomnittes ss
the Mamdicepped Regarding Gelleudet ssd the Netionsl Teschsicsl
Isstitute Per The Desf

Most funds to opstete Gsllsudet Collsgs, its slemsntery sad
sscosdary schools, ssd the Ne:clomel Techeicel Instituts for the
Desf (NTID) are provided by the federsl goversssst through
snsusi sppropristions. 1Is its MNerch 198> report, GAO rsported
thet Gesllsudet College's sed NTID's school yser 1981-82 tetsl
sducetional sséd gessrel espsnditurss per studsat vsere $23,772
ssd $19,771, respesctively. Thees casts per studsat resnged from
tvo to five tises bighsr thes otbar public sad ptivets post~
sscosdery schools. GAO eleoc fouod thet student-feculty tetios
wers two to three sséd oss-helf times lover st Gsllsudst snd RTIp
then st other postsscondery schools. Iu sddition, compsred with
other public snd privets schools, Gellsudst's snd MTID's 1983-04
sversge snnesl feculty cospensstion ves lowsr.

Regerding student Safollseat, GAO found thet fros 1981 to
1984, Gellsudst Collegs hsd s coneidetebls sumsber of unoccupied
beds in its dormitorise, iscludisg 192 (12 psrcent) 1o the fell

1984. 1o the fell of 1984, Gsllsudst's Nodsl Bscondsry
School for the Vesf wes slmost 100 studests bslowv its student
snrollmest cepscity of 450, BSchool otficiesls told us thet Gsl-
leudet ussds to isprove its rscruitsent sfforts to increses the
pool of quslifisd spplicents, snd sttridbuted the Modsl School's
woder-enroilment to s leck of quslified sppliceantes.

The Depsrtagnt of Rducstion revisve snd spproves the ineti-
tutions' budget trequests, but doss not smonitor OF svelusts the
schools’' sducstionsl progress. It cppccfc'thct sny mositorisg
of progres opsrstions is conductsd by the Congresss through over~

sight by this Subcomsittss end other. congrsssionsl cossittess.

11



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

Nr. Chairman and Nesbers of the Bubcommittses

We are pleased to be hers today to discuss the General
Acoounting Oftice's March 1983 repore,. ‘Rducating ltﬂ'ltl_' at
Gallaudet and the National Technical Instituts for the Deafs
Who Are Served and What Ars The Coets?® Our evalustioe was ooo-
Gucted ot your request. As you know, Gallsudet Collega ajso
operstes the Kendall Demovatration Rlementary School and the
Nodel Secondary School for the Deaf. MNost funds to Operate
ﬁllow». College, its elementary and secondary schools, and the
Techr .. Institute are provided by the fedaral governmen
through annual appropriations.

Among other matters, Our report saoslysed (1) the pumber and
the characteristics ot students at the four schools, (2) the
services provided and thsir costs, (3) the total cost per stu-
dent at these institutions varaus other public and private
schools, and {4) graduation and placement rates. As requested,
our testimony today will focus on two issuas: (1) tha costs of
educating postsscoudary studants at Gallaudst College and the
Technical Instituta and (2) the numbers of studsnts enrolled et
the institutions compared to each school’s capacity. You alse
asked us to comment On tha Department of Bducation's oversight
of the four institutionms.

Using the latast available data for comparison purpoass,
ve found that compared with simile: types of schools asrving
nonhaaring impaired studants, Gallaudat Collegs'e and the
Technical Instituta's

12



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

-~-costs per student in lch991 ysar 1981-82 were
considerably higher;
-~student-faculty ratios in school year 1981-82 were
considerably lower; and .
--&v.rage annual faculty compensation in school year
1983~-84 was lower.
We compared Gallaudet College and the Technical Institute to
institutions for the nonhearing impaired because there are no
‘imilar iﬂctititionc for the deaf in the U.S.

In addition, we found that from 1981 to 1984, Gallrudet
College had a considerable number of unoccupied beds in its
dormitorie-,'aﬂd in the fall of 1984, the Model Becondary School
was below its student enrollment capacity. On the oﬁher hand,
in the fall of 1984, the Kendall School'e enrcllment was near
ite capacity, and the T+ “hnical Institute exceeded its
designated capacity by 6% :udents.

BACKGROUND

Gallaudet College, the only 4-year liberal arts college for
the deaf in the world, is a private, non-profit institution
funded by the U.S. government and located in washington, D.C.

It was incorporated by the Congress in 1857. The college offers
associate's, bachelor's, master's, and doctor's degrees. In
fiscal year 1984, Gallaudet College received $37.1 million in
federal funds, which comprised about 75 percent of its total

revenue. In the fall of 1984, Gallaudet College had a student

13
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surollment of about 2,000, including graduate students, under-
graduates, and nondegree students.

The National Technical Institute for the Deaf--also known
as NTID--began operations in 1968 to prepare deaf students for
successful employment. Tt ie primarily a 2-year post,econdary
technical institution which grants associate's degrees, dip-
lomas, an? certificates. In addition, NTID studente may enroll

in classes or transfer into associate's, bachelor's, and

master's degree programs at the Rochester Institute of Techno-
logy for which the Rochester Inetitute is reimbu;ued.

The establishment of NTID was authorized by the Congrass
in 1965 in response to the then high unemployment rats among the
deaf. BSubsequently, the Rochester Institute of Technulogy, a
private 4-year postsecondary institution in Rochestar, New York,
was competitively awar<ed a contract to operate NTID. As the
“host" institution, the Rochester Institute is rsimbursed by the
federal government for NTID expenses. In fiscal year 1984, the
Rochester Institute received federal funds of $28 million to
operate NTID; these funde comprised abou. 85 percent of NTID's
total revenue. In the fall of 1984, NTID had 1,378 students.
COST COMPARISONS

To compare expenditures at Gallaudet College and NTID with
expenditures at other institutions that grant similar types and
numbers of degreges, we used .he most recent information avail-
able to us--school year 1981-82 data reported to the Department
of Education in its annual Higher Education General Information
Survey and compiled by the National Center on Higher Education

3
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Management Systome. For the 1981-82 echool ysar, Gallaudst Col=
lege's total educational and general sxpenditures psr student
wers §23,772; NTID's wers §19,771, ‘

Callaudet's cost psr otudent was five timee higher than the
average céct per student for 259 eimilarly classified public
inetitutions and thrse times higher than the average for 160
similarly olaseified private inetitutions. Also, Gallaudet's
co‘t psr student was twice as high as the median cost per
student for 19 of the nation's 20 eimilarly eized institutions
that have the highest total cost per student., We excluded one
of the 20 schools from our comparison because we believed ite
comparativoly'highnr research budget and total costs made it not
comparable to the other 19 institutions. .

At NTID, the total cost per student was six times higher
than the average total cost per student for 171 private 2-ysar
vocational-technical institutions, five and one-half times the
average for 273 public vocational-technical institutions, and
more than twice as high as the Rochester Institute of Techno-
logy's total cost per student. The attachment to thig statement
illustrates the comparative differences among Gallaudet's and
NTID's total costs per student and such costs at other
institutions.

In addition, Gallaudet's and NTID's average costs per stu-
dent iﬁ seven of the expenditure categories included in total
cost were consistently higher than those of the schools in the
comparison groups. (The seven expenditure categories include
instruction, research, public service, academic support, student

4
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servires, institutional support, npg plant operations and main-
tenance.) Oallaudet's costs ranged from 2 to 16 timss highsr
than eimilar costs for its comparison schools; NTID's costs
ranged from 1 and one-half to 224 times higher than similar
coste for its comparison schools.

Because of the uniqueness of Gallaudst's and NTID's pro-
qiau'. we did not reach conclusions about the reasonablensss of
their costs. Gallsudet and NTID officials did give us informa-
cion regarding thair schools' comparatively higher costs. For
example, NTID officials said that NTID's research expenditures
per student (5896) were six timoq higher than the Rochester
Institute of Technology's and as much as 224 times higher than
private 2-year vocational-technical e-hools. They attributed
these higher costs to NTID's mandate to conduct research while
these other technical schools do not have a similar program.
NTID conducts research on topics that affect the deaf such as
communication asseessment and training, education and learning,
and characteristice of the deuf population.

Likewise, Gallaudet's public service expenditures per stu-
dent ($2,279) were as much as 16 times higher than similar costs
** its comparison schools. They said thies situation occurred

iuse Gallaudet expenditures include tne costs of operating a
law center, college press, and continuing education center-=-

facilities which other institutions may not support.

16
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Comparimon_of studnnt-faculty ratios

officials at Gallaudet Collsge and NPID attributed their
schoole' higher cost per student in part to the schools' com-
paratively lower student-faculty ratios. To compars student-
faculty ratios at Gallaudet and NTID with the ratios at post-
eecondary institutions granting similar types of degrees, we
again used school year 1981-82 data from the Department of Edu-
cation's Higher Education General Information Survey. We com=-
puted the etudent-faculty ratios using the average full-time
equivalent studsnt body and number of full-time instructional
faculty. 1In school year 1981-82, Gallaudet's student-faculty
ratio was 7:1l; NTID's was Btl. Gallaudet's student-faculty
ratio was three times lower than the average ratio (21:l1) for
abou. 230 public and 140 private institutions and two times
lower than the madian studant-faculty ratio (12:l) for the 19
*high cost” schools.

Similarly, NTID's student-facuty ratio was more than three
and one-half times lower than the Jvnraqe rati!: Jor either the
825 public or 250 private 2-year institutions. We alao compared
NTID's 1982-83 student-faculty ratio with that of the Rochester
Institute of Technology. In that year, NTID's student-faculty
ratio of 9:1 was more than twice as low as its host institu=-
tion's (21:1).

Comparison of faculty compensation

Instructional costs are also affected by faculty compensa-
tion. To compare faculty compensation at Gallaudet and NTID
with faculty compensation at similar types of institutions for

6
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nonhearing impaired etudente, we used echool year 1903-84 data
compiled by the American Aasociation of Univereity Profeseors.
Yaculty compeneation ie made up of facu.ty ealariae and fringe
benefite for instructional faculty.

For the 1983-84 echool year, compared with 220 public snd
7% private inetitutione which grant eimilar numbere and typee of
academic degreee, Gallaudet's average annual faculty compsnea-
tion of $32,400 wae $100 to $600 lower. Compared with eeven
2-year vocational-technical inetitutione located in New York,
five New York urban community collegee coneidered by NTID to be
membere of ite peer group, and the Rocheeter Inetitute of Tech-
nology, NTID's average faculty compeneation of $30,900 wae lower
by §1,500 to $6,100. '
RESIDENTIAL ENROLLMENT

Regarding the numbere of etudente eerved at the four ineti-
tutione, we found that from 1981 to 1984, Gallaudet College had
a coneiderable number of unoccupied bede in ite dormitories,
including 192 unoccupied bede (12 percent) in the fall of 1984.
In the fall of 1984, the Model Secondary School wae below ite
etudent cnrollm.ni capacity, while NTID exceeded ite deeignated
capacity. In the fall of 1984, the Kendall Elementary 8chool, a
day echool with a etucasnt snrollment capacity of 200, had an
enrollment of 190.

Hﬁilg Gallaudet Colleqe has not eetablishea a etudent
enrollment capacity. from 1981 to 1984 ite dormitoriee were
operating below their etudent capacity, ranging from 13 percent
below in ths fall of 1983 to 22 percent bulow in the epring of

7
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1964, Gallaudet officiale told ue. that thelr recruitment
efforte need to be improved to increaes the pool of qualified
applicante:. 1In thie regard, Gallaudet officiale eetimated that
in each year from 1979 to 1983, on the averags about

=-«3%0 percent of thoee who applied met Gallaudet'e minimum

admieeione teet ecore requirementa, ana

~=58 percent of thoee who were accepted snrolled.
Of thoee etudente who enrolled, 70 percent were placed in Gal-
laudet'e preparatory program, & epecial one year program for
etudente who are not academically pf;plrod for undergraduate
etudies.

In the t;ll of 1984, enrollment at the Model Becondary
8chool, which clarges no tuition or other feee, wae almoet 100
studente below ite capacity of 450. 8chool officiale attributed
the under-enrollment to a lack of qualified applicante from the
echool'e primary eervice area--the Dietrict of Columbia,
Delaware, Maryland, Pennsylva:.ia, Virginia, and Weet Virginia.
Recruitment activitiee at the Hodo* Secondary School primarily
coneiet of dieeeminating information to the public. Por
example, in the 1983-84 ochopl year, although the Model Second-
ary School did not have a formal recruitment plan, ite recruit-
ment activitiee included publiehing information about the
echool, advertieiny in newepapere and other publicatione, exhi-
biting informatio:. at national meetinge of sducatore and parente
of the deaf, #nd working with parente of Model School etudents

who volunteered to talk to parente of proepective applicante.

v
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In the fall of 1984, NTID exdéeded ite 1,230 deeignated
deaf etudent capacity by 69 etudente and had a waiting liet of
37 additional Qualified applicante, Thie Wae ihe firet ysar in
which NTID had a waiting list after the etart of the fall

quarter.
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATICN O\ A% "THE
Gallauds: ‘olieyge, ! .+ nentary and eecondary echoole,

and NTID==four of e eix “"special inetitutione® specifically
appropriated funds by the Congrese--have a unique relationship
with the federal govarnment because educational asceietance is
not ordinarily appropriated for epecific inetitutione. Ae
recipiente of federal funde, the four inetitutione are eubject
to overeight by the Department of Education through ite Budget
Syeteme Divieion and Office of the Inepector General.
Annually, for each of the inetitutione the Department'e
Budget Syeteme Divieion
-=receivee and analyzes their budget requeete,
-=formulatee the Becretary'e budget recommendatione,
-=prepares budget eubmieeiors ‘o0, and negotiatee budget
levele with the Office of Management and Budget,
—-prepares the Budget Justification provided to the
Congreee, and
—-teetifiees at Congreesional appropriation hearinge
on the ludget requeete.

Periodically throughout the year, etaff from the

20



17

Pepartment’'s uudget Divislon meat with officiale of the fo.v
institutions end vieit thelr cempusss to mesure that their bude
gat reguests are reasonable and that tha echoole spsnd their
fedaral funds £Or tha Yeasons reguested, Howavar, the
ancrtnnaﬁ'o Budget Divieion staff do not have tha axpsrties to
raviaw programs for deaf aducation, and do not attempt to moni~
tOr Or evaluats the four sohoole' acadenmio programs. For
olnipln. the Budget Divieion has naver teviewed the quality of
education offared at the inetitutions or the extent or adequacy
of earvicee provided to daaf students. .

The Department of Education'a Office of the Inspector
General also reviews financial aspecta of the inetitutione’
activities. For example, the Inspsctor Gensrel'e office hae
raviewed the propriety and reseonableness of costs claimed by
NTID, and whether contract costs propoeesd by Gallaudet for a
Communication Skille Development Center weire reaeonadble and
allowable.

In sum, the Department of Bducation gensrally oversees fin-
ancial and budqgetary mattare pertaining to the four institu=-
tions, but these institutions have not been eubjected to any
eystemic ur periodic program evaluation. It appears that the
only 1ndopondont monitoring of program operatione at these
inetitutione is largely conducted by the Congress through
overeight by this and other congressional committees. If
program evaluation of these inetitutions ie considered deeirable

by the Subcommittee-~and we believe euch evaluation ie

10
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soneistent vith good manasgement Praciins«~theh you may wieh to
develop & MOre systematic svaluation stretegy snd we would be

9led to work with the suboommittre in doing eo,

Nr. Chairman, thie concludes our scatement, We will be
heppy tO snewer any Qusstions You of membere ©f Your aubcommit~

tes have perteining to our repore,

11
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Benator Wiickzr. On the last point that you raised, 1 would
concur with the bottom line, the factual bottom line of the lack of
oversight. The options are several. | suppose you could put it in &
formal way in Department of Education and assign authority
to & unit of that Department. You could create an authorization
situation, which presently is lacking.

Most proﬁmua at the very minimum, are authorised for 3 to &

™ata mo.hoyhlvowbomulhoﬂnd, I am not #0 sure if
t is what we should do. But I know that nothing In this world
should gn unreviewed, no matter what the cost. Noboa is debating
that 1 second. We are tal about close to a $100 million of tax-
payers’ money yearly. With the excoption of budgetary review or
uppropriations review by m{‘ committee, these programs have no
rogram review at all. And the A;:groghuom mmittee doos not
ve staff uniquely qualified to evaluate the program.

I do not want to get the heavy-handed Fednral Government all

over Gallaudet or Dbobut Ido l\!‘lm that all of us, from GAO

and the Approﬁ.ﬁmhm mmittee, us have some responsibil
ﬁy t? know what is going on with a $100 million, putting it very
mply.
»J’r" Gaingr. | would agree.

Senator Wrickea. Your report did not draw any conclusions
about whether the costs wero reasonable. Naturally, it would cost
more to educate 8 deaf student than a hearing student.

i I wonder lrft it should be five to six times more, as you point out
n your report.

r. GAINER. We have been gi a lot of thought to that ques-
tion in preparation for the hearing. I think, given the way that the
institutions have been developed, the missions that they have, I

nk you could expect the costs to be higher for a variety of rea.

sons.
For example, certain functions they have are rather unusual for
i‘:h&:l r‘ m:h associate’s %rognm or t: 4-year lihoﬁlhu’tp lehoﬁ:.
ot they carry out a graduate program which, for an in-
stitution of its size, has to be very . But I think there are a
couple of areas that could bear some ncruunind
e plant and operations at Gallaudet are very hard to j .
You can explain them by saying the cost per square foot is not
similar to other uni ties or colleges of its , but it is a little
;.‘oghor to say that the number of square feet per student is justi-
. I also think on disci'ssions we have had recently, that
eve involved is concern=d about the student-faculty ratios. I
think it is clearly going to have to be higher than a school
for the hearing, but there are probably some possibilities for im-
provement that ought to be looked at.
Senator Wrickea. You mean lower as far as the number of stu-
dents to the faculty?
tri?drtg look tY“; ottaer beru?ttipes on the wor& e did—f';’
ook at a great number o very prepare for
these hearings—we do not think we pinpointed any other cost
areas. I do think, thouglh. given the erence between those
schools and the eom&nb e institutions, that some more attention
ought to be given to their costs.
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Benator Waicxun, The ataff indicates, and your report indicated,
that the annual cost per student at California State College at
Northr is less than one-third the cost at Gallaudet. As 1 gather,
thar supply the same type of education as Uallaudet,

r. GAINRR. We did not review that institution in detail. They do
have, as com to Gallaudet, a host inatitution that probably
hnm a t‘l'ot thod‘h:lc costs tororlh:e 20‘3“,“ Cullf&mhl‘a,n\l\‘h are
unable to ex difference X o8d orthridge,
thare s 3,000 supplied by the Btate. 84800 ?gs“tho Fedoral Govern.
ment por student. That still leaves you with $6,500 as compared
with the $24,000 at Gallaudet.

Mas. Eumznaxno. One difference in coats can be attributed to the
fact that the program at North isa am within a larger
institution. It ls not a comprehensive institu itsolf and, there-
fore, it does not incur such costs as research and public service
costs, which Gallaudet and NTID do incur.

Senator Wrickua. That is a big discrepancy.

Mr. GAiNgr. | think one thing that we were unable to tell for

discussions NTID

cost breakout that we have. I should say h that it does
not make that much difference. It may reduce cost per student
by another couple of thousand dollars.

Benator Wrickzr. I understand that both Gallsudet and NTID
admit students one time per year.

Based on your report, attrition rates at Gallaudet from 11
to 26 percent in any 1 year. At NTID, attrition is about 38 percent

in any 1 .
Now, i ther whatever the system, beds stay pretty full at
NTID, but fl.\oy do not at Gallaudet. tay

Does NTID have a system different where indeed students are
accepted throughout the year, as opposed to Gallaudet?

Mr. Gamngx. I do not believe they do. Do we have that informa-
tion for NTID? I think they both operate the same way, but you

t be better off—
nator Weicken. I will ask them that question.

Mr. Gainex. In discussing that issue, the justification,
uniqueness of the program, and remedial and communications
npocbthntbothnchoohhnvoha::vldo.ltmnymkoudlﬂk\dt
to enter students in the middle of the achool year. We did not delve
into that in great de but it looks like an area that might bear
some further look by the schools, to see whether their is
really necessitated b‘\;‘the uniqueness of their problem, or it is
®0 that they have not had to deal with because they have
not been forced to.

Senator Wrickzr. I want to, first of all, thank GAO
complete study of this matter. I think, at the very least,
before any | tive change is being req
one thing. Starting next year, next yoar's appropriations hearings,



I intend to devote a day to NTID and Gallaudet and not have them
juat ernising in as part of a larger acenario.

Are there any other recommendationa that you would like to
offer the committee as a result of your report?

Mr. Gainer. | do not believe we have any recommendations.

lwwldnmutmamthatmm ht want to loak at fur
ther when have your oversight hearings next year. o

One ven their cost per student as compared Lo other institu-
tions, | k the cost issue should continue to get some further at-
tention this year, and next year, and the year thereafler to make
sure that both institutions are doing as good a job aa they can. Thia
is not to reflect on the opesation.

I ly went out and looked at both achools, and talked to

at some length, and with the staff on the job. We are not

suggoesting that these sc are not well run. The question is just
whether or not they are as officient as thomuld be.

Another concorn that arises when at the statis-
:!n“d l&m minority participation at both tutions, Gallaudet College

tonda to be a factor in students’ cholos as to whether or not to go to
Gallaudet or or not to go at all, Students from the west
coast going to NTI mnyhnvontnwlhnhr‘andmcouldmt

body who wantad to go to those schools.
I am and Gallaudet have a different view
thmlﬂ items, but | think they arv items that could bear anoth:

Senator Wrickzn, Mouywmovoou.r‘you alluded to the it
tion that you felt required a look at minorities.
What is your indication there, that there is 8 lack of minoriti

2
é
g

AL o o Wl i o e T g i foo of
w ornotthooutruchmdt'lnrecrui or perhaps

mnomkhﬁuhcﬂﬁuhﬂnmdmulyummﬂ
students.

ty

I am not giving you an answer. I am just saying it was a good

uutlonuu?mmnunablowpumojduﬂnxuwumothntn

had for this study.

Another \MLQ. that I think might bear some look is the

tion of fi students and whether or not they should be

access to udet at the same price as US. citizens. And, finally,

mhen you ook ut Lbe sffctreaam of both shool, the question of
n

thmgruduamtomnhemntﬁ:mm allaudet and

the Technical Institute—that they are ha as %m

um&gnonomploymtbmuulthink t is the

for both institutions.

o =
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Senator WeICKER, What are your feelings on that? Have you
tried to track tire thing out there after graduation?

Mr. GAaiNgr. Well, we tried to deal with the statistics that they
had. Frankly, NTIiY’s atatistics were a little easier to use. They do
a better job of sutcmating and keeping track of that kind of infor-
mation. But the ylecement rates, as I read them, are similar. They
are about 50 to 60 werceut, some place in that range, depending on
how you count. [ think both schools can come up with a higher
number if they try, dcpending on how they analyze their statistics.
But that exvludes people who go into higher education, which is 20
to 30 percent in each case. But we do not know what happens to
those students aftor they complete their graduation. There is no
way to get a line on each graduate and what the employment rate
is after attending one of these schools.

Senator Wxzicker. Do you not think you obliquely raised the
question as to travel costs? Both of these institutions are in the
East. Does it not also raise the question as to whether or not better
education in this area cannot %e accomplished iz a more diffuse
way; that is, the institutionalization concept, it seems to me, ap-
niies to the deaf as much as to anybody else. And is it not so that
the state of the art is such that maybe people are better off in get-
ting an education in California, Texas, and Illinois rather than be
focusing in on one institution?

Mr. GAINER. I wish we could answer that question, but we did
not try, and I think it is a very difficult question.

Hearing loss is a very profound handicap. And the communica-
tions skills of the student—of a student who goes to a place like
Northridge may be much better. They may have come out of the
mainstream tradition to begin with, and I think it would take a lot
of sorting out to make & judgment as to whether or not you could
replicate that model over the country and deemphasize these sorts
of programs. I just do not know.

nator WEICKER. Because, indeed, the money that the Federal
Government spends on the deaf, what, 90 percent goes—education-
al money—90 percent of this money goes to these two institutions.

Mr. GAINER. I think that is about right.

Senator WEICKER. The staff tells me 98 percent.

Mr. GamNer. And the cc ¢ is really staggering.

Senator WEICKER. It does raise +™e question us to what somebody
can do in their educational syste.. in California for $1 million. I
gather in the regional postsecondary period. this is going on.

Mr. GaiNER. One question, I think, would have to be answered
there is what are the students like that are admitted to, say,
Northridge, or a school like that initially, and what kind of an edu-
cation do ey receive? What are their test scores when they leave
an education like that as compared to Gallaudet or NTID? And it
is just not clear what that cost-effectiveness ratio is.

One thing that we did not put into the report, though, which
gives a person pause when they look at the numbers, is that a Gal-
lauc . student may stay there 5 or 6 years at that ll;1>ostsecondary
level. Even if it costs less than $24,000 a year, it is still rather high.
Maybe you could back some of that cost out. Suppose you get it
down to $20,000 a year and say this is really what is spent on the
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education component. You are talking about $20,000 a year for 6
years, and that is a lot of money.

And I think, as a public policy, there really should be a closer
look at this cost comparison between the mainstreaming approach
and the Gallaudet or NTID approach.

Senator WEICKER. Well, thank you very much. I appreciated your
testimony.

There will be other questions for submission in the record. I
know we have Ms. Will waiting to testify. I have a feeling that we
will be seeing you again next year, and thank you for your work,

Mr. GAINER. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

[Responses of Mr. Gainer to questions submitted by Senator
Weicker follows:]
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William J. Gainer response to Chairman Weicker's
questions related to Junc 11, 1945, hearing on
Gallaudet and NTID

Questions

At this point Gxllaudet and NTID have a permanent
authorization. Mo3t special education programs are authorized
for 3 to 5 years at a time. In your opinion, what would be the
pro's and con's of putting Gallaudet and NTID on a similar
reauthorization schedule?

Our comment:

As we stated in our testimony, the Department of Educa-
tion's oversight of these institutions is limited to financial
and budgetary matters. The institutions are not subjected to
any systemic or periodic review, with the exception of congres-
sional hearings such as the Subcommittee periodically conducts.
The »dvantage of authorizing Gallaudet and NTID for three to
fis: ;ears is that it would provide regular and periodic con-
gres:..onal oversight of the institutions. Such oversight would
(1) likely i<ad to an increase in the institutions' accountabi-
lity for spending its appropriations effectively and in accord-
ance with congressiconal intent and (2) provide a mechanism for
the Congress to periodically fine tune the institutions' pro-
grams to adjust to changing circumstances over tima. On the
other hand, short authorization periods puts an added stress on
the Congress' limited time which might argue for a five year
rather than the 3 year authorization.
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Questiont
According to your report, Kendall Demonstration Elementary
8chool spends 3.4 million dollars in research and demonstra-
tion. That'e over $18,000 per student per year in research and
demonstration. Does thie seem unusual to you? For what exactly
is the $18,000 per child research expenditure used?
OQur comments
We reported that in school year 1983-84 the Kendall Demon-
stration Elementary School (KDES) spent 51 percent of its budget
for research and demonstration, which amounted to about $3.4
million or $17,000 per student. Research and demonstration are
responsibilities specifically legislated to KDES which other
institutions would not have, and such costs would not be
generally included in per student costs. Therefore, since
research is not related to the number of students, a per student
comparison of the costs with other institutions is not too mean-
ingful. According to information we subsequently obtained from
Gallaudet the following comprised KDES' research and demonstra-
tion expenditures:
==Curriculum development and evaluation. This component
made up 44 percent ($1,500,000) of KDES' research and
demonstration costs. This activity includes developing
and evaluating instructional materials and learning acti-
vities for hearing-impaired children, which are subse-~
quently disseminated to educators of the deat.
--Dissemination. This activity comprised 32 percent
($1,080,000) of KDES' research and demonstration costs.
Dissemination includes providing instructional materials,
periodical publications, and training and technical
assistance to academic professionals, administrators,
teachers, parents, and students throughout the nation.
--Research. Research costs comprised 14 percent ($482,000)
of KDES' research and demonstration expenditures. KDES'
research program is focused on early childhood develop-
ment of hearing-impaired children, family interactions,
and communication and literary skills. In addition,
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assopamsat instruments for measuring educational achieve-
ment and soclal-emotional development are developed and
disseminatec natiorally. 1In school year 1983-84, KDES
was funding six r+asarch projects: (1) Amnual Survey of
Hear .ng-Impaired Children and Youth ($101,000), (2) Deve-
lopment and Standardization of the SAT-HI ($135,000), (3)
Neuroheha:ioral Asgessment of Deaf Children and Adoles-
cents (558,000), (4) Follow-up of Infants at Risk for
Nearing~-Impairnent ($48,000), (5) Interaction of Mothers
and Deaf Infants in the Pirat Year of Life ($82,000), and
(6) Developing Literacy in 3~ to 8-Year Old Deaf Children
($58,000).

--Diagnostic services. These costs made up 10 percent
($340,000) of RDES' research and demonstration expendi-
tures. Diagnostic services include developing diagnostic
methods, and providing professional assistance and con-
sultation to local education agencies. For example, the
diagnostic services program developed and disseminated
nationwide an auditory skills guide to help school dis-
tricts deal with auditory needs of hearing-impaired stu-
dents.

During the course of our review, we attempted to compare
KDBES' costs with costs at similar schools. However, we were
unable to identify any other day schools for the deaf that have
research programs. Therefore, we have no basis for comparing
KDBS' research and demonstration costs in order to determine
their reasonableness.
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Senator WEICKER. Our next witness is Madeleine C. Will, Assist-
ant Secretary for Special Education and Rehabilitative Services.

Madeleine, how are you? Go right ahead. I gather you are
pressed for time so why do you not start right off.

STATEMENT OF MADELEINE C. WILL, ASSISTANT SECRETARY,
OFFICE OF SPECIAL EDUCATION AND REHABILITATIVE SERYV-
ICES, ACCOMPANIED BY THOMAS SKELLY, OFFICE OF PLAN-
NING, BUDGET AND EVALUATION

Ms. WiLL. I am pleased to have this opportunity to appear before
the Senate Subcommittee on the Handicapged to participate in the
oversight hearings on the recent accomplishments and future direc-
tions of Gallaudet College and the National Technical Institute for
the Deaf [NTID), and to examine the role these institutions play in
3ervices the Federal Government provides to our Nation’s deaf stu-

ents.

I would like to trace briefly the history of education of deaf per-
gons in this country-as part of the broad picture of assessing where
we are ancg]}Iooking at future directions for these programs.

Historically, organized postsecondary education of the deaf in
this country traces its origin to the establishment of Gallaudet Col-
lege in 1864. Gallaudet College was established, and continues to
be, the only national liberal arts college exclusively for deaf per-
sons in the world.

Following World War 11, our soci:ﬁ% entered a new technological
era. This brought with it new and different jobs, and an increasing
need among your people for advanced training to fill these jobs. Ex-
isting higher education institutions expanded, and new colleges
emerged, as evidenced by the phenomenal growth of the 2-year
community college.

. In the meantime, thousands of deaf young people were graduat-
ing from secondary educational programs each year. Some with the
aptitudes and interests for a liberal arts education continued to be
served by Gallaudet, and some were successful in regular college
programs without special services. Most, however, entered the em-
ployment marketplace directly upon graduation from secondary
programs. :

During the late fifties and early sixties, educators, rehabilitation
workers, and deaf leaders became actively concerned about the
growing gap between vocational demands and training opfortum-
ties for deaf people, which was reflected in rising unemployment
and underemployment among deaf workers.

This led to passage of the National Technical Institute for the
Deaf Act in 1965, and the establishment of NTID as a national
postsecondary program for the deaf at Rochester Institute of Tech-
nology [RIT], in 1966. This program is currently serving approxi-
mately 1,300 deaf students from across the Nation.
~ Prior to 1975, Federal funds targeted for postsecondary education

of the hearing impaired had been limited to Gallaudet and NTID.
In addition to these two programs, in 1975, 41 non-federally funded
community colleges, technical and vocationsl institutes, and uni-
versities repo some sort of support programs for hearing im-
paired students. By 1982, that number had increased to 99. I am
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including in my statement charts that show first, 1082 figures for
nonfederally funded programs, and second, growth of postsecond-
arg programs for deaf students in the United States.

ince these programs were established by States rather than the
Federal Government, there was little interstate coordination and
little or no direct involvement on the part of professional organiza-
tions, such as the Conference of Executives of American Schools for
the [Seaf, or Federal agencies such as the Department of Education.

In the mid-1970’s, Congress determined that it was necessary to
spread the Federal su%port to other geographical areas so that deaf
students could have the opportunity to attend programs and find
employment closer to home. Consequently, the Education for the
Handicapped Amendments of 1974 included an authorization for
the Regional Education Programs. The amendments established
three programs: California State University at Northridge, Seattle
Central Community College in Washington, and St. Paul Vocation-
al Institute in Minnesota, with specified sums to be allotted to
each. In the following year, 1976, the appropriation was increased,
and a program at Delgado College in New Orleans, LA, was added.
Also, both Senate and House reports accompanying the Education
of the Handicapped Amendments of 1977 provided for the continu-
ation and expansion of the Regional Education Program—now
known as Postsecondary Educational Programs for Handicapped
Persons—with the stipulation that funding for model programs
serving other disabled populations would not be made at the ex-
pense of the existin% 3prog’rams serving the deaf.

In fiscal year 1983, a competition was held for the first time,
with three of the original four programs refunded. Delgado was re-
placed by the University of Tenness: o’s Consortium. OSERS pres-
ently has oversl'%ht of these programs.

None of NTID's budget comes from private sector donations. A
recent study done by GAO indicates several sources of revenue for
Gallaudet, including, among other sources, $4.850 million in other
Federal grant and contract dollars.

Federal costs for deaf students attending programs located on the
other campuses, according to our figures, cover an excess cost of
$3,000 and $3,500 per student. These two programs serve 750 stu-
dents at a total Federal investment of approximately $2.5 million.
The Federal dollars, in these instances, only purchase services in
excess of costs for nondisabled students.

As a result of the least restrictive environment, LRE, provisions
of Public Law 94-142, the percentage of hearing-impaired children
in public schools has increased while the percentage in residential
placements has decreased. The trend is toward education in nonse-
gregated settings. All disabled children, including deaf children,
are being educated in less restrictive environments. Although there
is a place for Gallaudet and NTID on the continuum of ¢ :1 vices of-
fered to deaf students, in light of current practice and trends, this
may be a good time to assess these programs and establish goals
that reflect current law and practice. The question seems to be
what kinds of proFrams are currently appropriate for the expendi-
ture of Federal dollars. .

There is a concern that some of these federally funded “models”
or demonstrations programs are “out of step” with prevailing prac-
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tice and the lenst restrictive environment provision of Public Law
94-142. Both legislation and educational practico are shifting dra-
matically toward more integrated programs. For instance, only 26
percent of elementary and secondary deaf students now attend resi-
dential schools cornpared to 46 percent in 1970, Whatever gaps may
exist pose a speclal challenge as we continue to pursue movement
toward less segregated environments. As you know, I am exceed-
ingly optimistic about the values to be derived for each child from

lacement in the least restrictive environment, It is our hope that

ngress will encourage this trend.

I would be pleased to answer questions at this time,

Senator WEICKER. Well, let us start right where you left off.

As you have indicated, since the passage of Public Law 94-142 10
years ago, mainstreaming handicapped children has been the goal
for srecial education, yet Gallaudet College, the Kendall Demon-
stration Elementary School, and the Model Secondary School for
the Deaf are all segregated schools.

Now, that certainly flies contrary to the state of the art, it seems
tf, u;e, the state of the law. Would you like to comment further on
that

Ms. WiLL. I think in the past few years we really have begun to
focus more and more attention on the least restrictive environment
Erovision. We are beyond the stage where we were involved in

asic implementation of the ac*, unable to target specific aspects of
the statute. We have, as we tried to implement the act gained
greater knowledge about developing very good, high quaiity pro-
grams for handicapped students in the least restrictive environ-
ment. That is not to say that we have all the answers, but we do
feel that we have a much better, a more refined understanding of
hmwtsto provide services to even the most severely handicapped stu-

ents.

In addition, we are looking at the least restrictive environment
from the vantage point of the disabled person’s entire life. We are
focusing on education, yes, but we are also focusing on employ-
ment, indeed, to provide services for the handicapped person to
function in the marketplace and live in the community along with
everyone else. )

Senator WEICKER. Because these schools are segregated, I find it
very difficult to understand how they are going to serve as models
for the rest of the country. That is what they were initially intend-
ed to be, but I do not see where that can be.

Mr. SkeLLy. There has been some evidence in the past couple of
years, sir, that the curriculums and skills are used by other schools
which are teaching those students in mainstream settings. This
past year, 22,000 copies of materials Model and Kendall had devel-
oped were provided to public students. They are making an effort
totgpvelop materials that can be used for students in a mainstream
setting.

Certainly there are not going to be other schools like Model and
Kendall in the United States that get 100 percent of their funding
from the Federal Government. They are unique, and no other
school is going to be able to replicate that kind of funding or orga-
nization, but some of the things they develop can be used by public
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schools which, on occasion, pull studenta out from their regular
olasses in order to glve them special education,

Senator WEICKER. Then that is a plus, if you will, in the sense of
these two institutions. I would repeat at this juncture what we are
trying to do here, as much as I appreciate Gallaudet and NTID
certalnly this committee, your department is for the deaf people all
ovur the United States in seeing that they get not just the best edu-
cation, but the greatest opportunities to become part of the main-
stream In the sense of jobs and everything else after that.

Indeed, we may be umﬁatlng too much money and concentrat-
ing on too few students, when we ought to be more diffuse in our
activities. I am not criticizing Gallaudet or NTID. I think every-
body would agree in that what they do, there is none better, but
that reaching the deaf population in this country?

I might add I have no problem—one thing that was raised in the
GAO report, the matter of foreign students at Gallaudet or NTID. I
have no problem with that. I think that the best thing thc United
States can do is to take our knowledge and expertise v aispense
it to the world rather than what we do dispense to the world.

Mr. SxeLLy. I should point out that foreign students in Gallaudet
ilo ga{ 50 percent more tuition than the American students at Gal-
audet.

Senator Wricker. Why?

Mr. SkeLLy. They have to pay a larger share of the cost to re-
ceive their education. They are not paying the total cost.

Senator WEICKER. Senator Nickles.

Senator NIcKLES. What is the tuition at Gallaudet?

Mr. SkeLLy. The total tuition, room, board and fees is $4,600. The
tuition is approximately $2,200 for the American students; and for
foreign students, it is approximately $3,300.

Senator NickLEs. I was thinking it was almost, what, the cost per
student is $23,000?

Mr. SkeLLY. The total cost is $23,000, but the students only pay a
fraction of that cost, as they do a: most institutions. .

Senator NickLEs. The students pay what fraction? How much is
the tuition again?

Mr. Skerry. The tuition is approximately $2,200. The student’s
share is approximately 25 percent, 20 to 25 percent of the costs are
paid by the student at Gallaudet College.

Senator NickLes. And at the Rochester Institute, did I hear you
say that that was totally paid for by the Government?

r. SKELLy. No. students also pay room and board, and
through the cooperation with Gallaudet, it is approximately the
same. It is slightly higher because Gallaudet’s costs are lower. Still
approximately 25 percent.

nator NickLes. Thank you. )

Senator WEICKER. When Congress reauthorized the Special Edu-
cation Programs in 1984, emphasis was given to expanding Region-
al Postsecondary Programs to the handicapped.

How many of these programs are currently funded for the deaf
and at what level?

Ms. WiLL. There are four postsecondary institutions. They serve
a total of 750 students, and the expenditure is $2.5 million.

Senator WEICKER. 750 students in each one of these four?
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Ms. WL, The total,

Senator WERICKER, Total?

Ms. WiLL, Yes. They serve an average of 200 to 260 studenta
each. And the total fiscal investment is $2.6 million. They provide
special tutoring, noto taking, Interpreters’ services and special
counseling in these institutions.

I think I mentioned in my testimony the cost of these programs
averaged between $8,000 to ‘8,500 per student.

Senator WEICKER, What i the estimate as to the numbers of deaf
college age people? I believe that about 3,000 deaf children are
born each year, which would result in about 12,000 college age doaf
students at any one time—is that right?

Ms. WiLi. There are 74,280 students in the category of hearing
imparied in the elementary and secondary aschool systems.

r. SxeLLy, Between 8,000 to 12,000 students of college age.
Senator Wgicker, How many of the elementary and secondary?
Ms. WiLL. I do not know what the percenu&emo that is. We have

-itx.;)". mﬂ&on children in special education; 74,000 would be hearing

nator Weicker. Well, it seems to me we are l‘pendlng a dispro-
portionate amount of money on that nui.ber of students. Am I
right or wrong about that when it comes to Gallaudet and the re-
gional grograml?

Mr. SkELLy. ht. Among those six institutions, the Federal
Government would be providing funding for approximately 4,000 of
the 8,000 to 12,000 students of college age who are deaf.

Senator WEICKER. At what cost?

Mr. SkeLLy. Well, as you indicated, it runs for the Federal share
between $8,600 and—

Senator WEICKER. No. Total dollars. $92 million?

Mr. SkeLLy. Approximately $92 million.

Senator WEICKER. Now, what is out there for everybody else?
How many numbers do we have left out there who are of college

e

Mr. SkeLLY. There are approximately 12 million students in at-
tendance at college.

Senator WEICKER. No. Of those who are hearing impaired. )

Mr;aSKELLY. Anywhere from another 4,000 to 8,000 hearing im-
paired.

Senator WeICKER. And wha: is out there for them dollar wise?

Mr. SkeLLy. They can get other Federal student aid to attend
programs for hearing students. If they do not have a profound loss,
they could get almﬁswell at a hearing institution, and they would
not want to go to this kind of school.

Senator Weicker. Well that 4,000 to 8,000 has far less of a pot to
turn to than the other 4,000.

Mr. SkeLLY. The students——

Senator WEeICKER. Make it clear to me. I do not mean to confuse

ou. As I understand it, we have 4,900 students getting $92 million.

have got another 4,000 to 8,000 students over here just as much
h.e%rti‘;xg impaired as part of the 4,000 in these 6 institutions. Is that
g

Mr. SkELLY. Yes.

36



hb ]

‘ﬁa%mtor Weiokgr. What do they have available to them dollar
wise

Mr, 8xewLy, They probably—their hearing is not as severely af-
ected as those who attend these other institutions. I eannot prove
that. Their handicap is not as great if they are not going to these
inatitutions in general.

Senator WrickEr. You are certain about that?

Mr. SxeLLy. I cannot tell yon the docibel level that of the 8,000 to
12,000 how many-———

Benator Wickzn. let me ask you what I8 available to them
dollar wise? We know $92 million is available to these. What ia
available to these over here?

Mr. SxrLLy. Well, they have available to them all student ald, all
the vocational rehabilitation aid.

Senator WrickeR. 1 assume Student Ald Programs are avallable
fo”ooglo to go to Gallaudet?

r. SKxLLY, Yes.

Senator Wrickzr. So what I am u{g is what do we have in the
Federal pot for these other 8,000 2,000, equating that with
going to the others to go to the institution?
tohtdl: th;u.v. We would not have anything available comparable

at.

Senator WrickeR. I want to make sure that they have the same
opportunity ag~——

r. SkxLLy. We do make sure that the students have an opportu-
nltget.o attend a college if that is what is best suited for them.

nator Weicker. You know what we are running into here is
that this was all set up at a titne when concepts were different
population distribution was different, how one viewed deafness and
what caused it was different, and basically we are dealing with a
system~—how old is Gallaudet?

Mr. SkeLLY. 123 years.

Senator Weicker. We are dealing with a system, not just the in-
stitution, but with a system, since the Federal Government is the
one suppl 100 percent of the financing. It is a Federal system.
And we started from scratch, we would not institute this
system, would we? Would that be a safe statement, that if today we
started at this problem of postsecondary education and making the
philosophical assumption which I am sure the administration
would not make, that if the Federal Government is mng to go
ahead and handle this project, we would not institute this system?

Would you agree with me on that?

Ms. WiLL. I am not sure. It would not be our first preference. We
wouldulcgrtainly think about supporting students in their locale if
we could.

Senator WEICKER. I think we would have a variety of options
open to us, both in terms of geography, in terms of institutions, in
terms of programs. I do not think it would be centralized in two
places. That is my concern. I think the state of the art is changing.

Would you like to see Gallaudet—would you like to see Gallaudet
and perhaps NTID under your jurisdiction now?

Ms. WiLL. I think there are a variety of options available which
would give OSERS programmatic oversight over Gallaudet. We
have very little connection with Gallaudet, as I am sure you know,
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in looking at annual reporta. The Department does the fiacal ac-
eounting, and the Inapector General's office audita; but in terms of
researc {)rlaritleﬂ. evaluation of products, and dissemination of
preduets, there is no formal relationship with Gallaudet and NTID.
hﬁegnw{ Weicker. | want to make one point clear in the course of
t earing.

I do not fmvo anﬁ queations with regard to the integrity of Qal-
laudet or NTID. What concerns me s not the int@frlty nor the ex:
pertise nor the competence of these institutions. I am {ust begin-
ning to get the feel it is sort of out of whack of what the total
aynt:!m ought to be in terms of delivery of services. That is my
problem.

Ms. WiLL. Senator, you have to remember that Gallaudet Is a lib-
eral arts college. We think of it as a school for the deaf, which, of
course, it is, but it is also a liberal arts college. The Department
would not ordinarily think of mandating curriculum content, or
looking at traini %r:gramn. and so forth, but the research pro-

m perhaps could be reviewed, or evaluated by the Department.
ut we want to be very careful that our Federal role is not an in.
trusive one.

Senator Wxickgr. Madeleine, I know you have another appoint-
men:d on the House side. | have further questions to submit for the
record.

Thank you very much for your testimony.

ponses of Ms. Will to quostions submitted by Senator
Waeicker follows:)
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Quastiony According ta the GAD ¥spu: - reis: v -nd NTID
Npant over 13 w' e T "ev wn ressarch
and demonateatie - Corrrs Eow waeh addisional
Monsy does the fwpes tural ol Beacativh ;ssnd aRpuslly
on vedeRruh and demonstiation far eaf Bducatien?
What procedures afe Lhere between your offios and

! OR NTID for determining research and
: askration gr grisien; contianting rosedroh
1)

fiorta, and # R waf  What
Therovasentcs :ou[A“nn.:nﬁz‘tx orruia botier
caoordination and diasemination of findinga?

Answars  Thete are no funde sekt aaide specifically for
resuarch and demonstration for deaf edueatiaon,
Applications for the desf are sulmitced under
ressarch and demonstration competitions an are those
relating to other dlaabilities, Gallaudet Colleye
has responded to funding announcements, but Ls not
treated dtttotqntlx from any other applicant, Uader
the Rducation of the Handicapped Act, program
funding for research relating to deafndss amounted
to (8394,604) and PY ‘03 (721,970) in PY '04, 1In
addition, a significant number of demonatration
projecta funded under the Deaf-Blind and Beverely
Handlcapped and other activities include deafnesa
an one of thelr target gopulatton». The National
Institute of Handicapped Research ias currently fund-
ing & study of post secondary programe for the deat
with the Arkansas Rehabilitation hesearch and
Training Center on Deafness and Hearing Impairment.
This Yrojoct is ite third and tinal year. The
annual cost tor this project is $200,000,

At present, the Department's procedures for
coordinating procedures and sharing results are
relatively limited, NTID invites an OSERS representa-
tive to each of ite National Advisory Group meetings
and also can work with ite tormal project officer in
the Department. doth of these roles offer the
Department an opportunity to establish research
priorities,

The National Institute for Handicapped Research (NIHR)
has extended an invitation to the Gallaudet College
Research Director to participate in the Interagency
Subcommittee on Hearing Impairments (which is one of
eight subcommittees of the Interagency Committee on
Handicapped Rasearch) and this has been arranged,

NIHR would be pleased to include NTID in similar
activities. Another possibility for coordination is
to require the two institutions to submit a tentative
1ist of research projects along with the annual budget
request. The planned projects could be reviewed by
interested OSERS staff, the budget office and the
Appropriations Committee.
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ARSWET

When The Congreas Feauthngised the Special Bducation
Progiams in 1904, eaphaeis wau given s sEpanding
Fegianal paltanccadary prograne fur the hapdicapped,
PO theas programe have adequate Fesources ta Eefve
Asal studsnts who WaArt £Q attend thed? bav hie the
Srpertine developed at gallauder Cull #and the
National Yechnieal inati€ute Tor The DeAf (NFID) over
the years benefitied these progiams?

The current four pinqgrans funded under PosLRscoadatry
Wucation Prograse for Handicaped Perwvia, 9{.,.‘,
with a combination of Pederal and son Mederal fusding
"FQen, One af the four pre?fanl rﬁgar;g 4 u;i&inz‘
list of adminsible students of up to I0 perscan; othes
Programe veport pg walting liste, Givea insvitable
‘ontl fluetuationn in the amaunt of fuads Fugwived

rom Pedsral, Btate. ar local sources, a progran
serving deaf students may caperisnce oecasionsi
Short=term difficulty ia balanoing snroliment and
rescurce levele, but by in large we consider the
Programs to bhe adequately funded,

Gallaudet College and the NTID have interacted with
the tour postescondary programe dlrwu&nd
indirectly. Por example, Gallaudet College
obtained a substantia r:nnt from the Relloyy
roundatior in the late {970ts, and sume Crom tiat
graat ourrortod the establiehment, in April, 1978, of
& *Council of Directore® of the Pederally-funded
posteecondary programe ftor deal studentsa. The stated
objectives tor thie group were (1) to assute
Q0operative eftorta amony members; (1) to pr ]
ragulations and guidelines for the thea-receatly
paseed interpreter training legislation; and (3) to
work cooparatively with respect to future funding or
updated regulations for the regional ceanters for deaf
atudents. This group cooperatively produced the
bagklet, *The Deat Btudent at CQlloro'. which became
rt of a g:clot distributed at regional workehops
hat ware held in 190},

Gallavdet College and WTID have combined resourcea tor
the occasional publication of a college and carear
gutdc to posteecondary programs having some combina~
fon of support services for holrtn? aired ety-
n 1983, with more

dents. The third gdition appeared
than 106 programs listed.

Indirectly, the Offica of Demographic gstudies at
Gallaudet College has provided aasistance to the four
programs, because the data generated on high-school-
4ga deaf students has helped the programs in planning
and making raasonable projections for their respective
future enrollments.
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Contributions to the field of postsecondary education
for deaf students by NTID have been made since its
inception. NTID first printed notetaking copybooks
with pressure-sensitive paper, facilitating the
notetaking process. More recently, an NTID staff
member, developed a manual for the training of note-
takers and has made presentations on the topic at
regional workshops, some of which were hosted by the
four centers for deaf students. NTID personnel have
presented at California State University at Northridge
and at Seattle Community College's program for deaf
students on the topic of Job Placement for Deaf
Students.

One of NTID's most significant contributions to
improving education of the deaf is a technique

geveloped at NTID to assess deaf students' hearing
oss,

Gallaudet College, through its National Academy, has
hosted activities which relate to the postsecondary
rograms, in the areas of interpreting and mental
ealth. Staff members from the four centers have
either participated in or given presentations at these
workshops/colloquia.

Currently, admissions personnel in the four centers
engage in informal telephone communication with their
counterparts at Gallaudet and NTID about potential
students and possibilities for transfer students.

Senator WEICKER. Our next witness is Jerry C. Lee, president of
Gallaudet College.

It is nice to have you with us, Dr. Lee. I remember a very brief
apgearance about 2 months ago. You were awaiting the birth of a
baby at the hospital. I assume that all went smoothly.

Dr. L. Yes, it did, Senator. He is 6 weeks old and doing well.

Senator WEICLE«. Incidently, we have with us today as our sign
language interpreters Francis Burton and Janet Bailey with S&L
Associates. It is nice of them to perform that function for us.

Jerry, why do you not go ahead, and your statement will be
placed in the record. You may proceed in any way you see fit.

STATEMENT OF JERRY C. LEE, PRESIDENT, GALLAUDET
COLLEGE

Dr. Lee. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, Gallau-
det College is pleased to appear before this subcommittee today and
I welcome the opportunity to discuss its programs and services. In
particular, I would like to share with the subcommittee some
ggﬂlghts regarding the status of and future plans for Gallaudet

ege.

This year has been cne of extensive review for the college. As
you know, we worked with the General Accounting Office during
its review of our programs throughout the latter half of 1984. I can
assure the subcommittee that the GAO report reflects a fair, accu-
rate, and comprehensive evaluation of the college’s programs, the
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constituencies it serves, and the costs. I want to fpersonally com-
mend the GAO auditors assigned to this review for their profes-
sionalism,

As you mey also know, I met with the staff of this subcommittee
throughout the Jummer and fall of 1984, as often as twice a month.
Their thorough study of the college’s progams is to be commended,
and I want to thank Dr. Levitt, Ms. éﬁongleton and Dr. White for
this effort and for the guidance whjéh resulted from it. As a new
president, I am sure that the GAO report and the support provided
by this subcommittee will continue to be of enormous value to me
in the years ahead.

Along with these external reviews, the college has also undertak-
en an extonr'.e self-evaluation. The focus has been on reaffirming
our commitment to proven programs and developing others of high
quality that will be delivered in the most cost-effective and re-
source efficient manner. Our aim continues to be of service to an
increasingly broad segment of the deaf and hearing impaired com-
munity, and to do so in ways which support significant improve-
ment in the quality of their lives.

Since my assumption of the presidency a little over a year ago,
this review has intensified. The largest single effort has been the
development of a program master plan which will be ready for im-
plementation this fall. We have also completed major studies of
academic program quality, enrollment management, and alumni
affairs. These and other planning activities have helped Gallaudet
move with increasing aggressiveness toward achievement of its
multipurpose mission.

Without question, the investment of the Federal Government in
Gallaudet has been significant. Effective support has been provided
for 121 years, and this shared commitment to the deaf people of
this Nation is, of course, reflected in many ways. Gallaudet’s physi-
cal facilities, for example, are exemplary and are comprised of two
campuses located in Washington, DC, aggroximately 60 buildings,
108 acres, and a plant value of nearly $200 million.

This investment, which includes an annual appropriation ap-
proaching $60 million per year, has assisted Gallaudet in offering
progranis in over 30 fields of study which result in associate of arts,
bachelors, masters, and doctoral degrees being awarded to deserv-
ing students. Further, the college also has research and demonstra-
tion programs at the elementary and secondary level. These two
national demonstration schools provide direct instruction to ap-
proximately 600 students per year.

It is important today to indicate the return on this investment. It
is severalfold. The most obvious is the substantial return in terms
of the educational level of our deaf community, which far exceeds
that of any country of the world, and for which Gallaudet is largely
responsible.

Two-thirds of all deaf college graduates in this country have a
Gallaudet degree.

Forty-two percent of Gallaudet’s graduates obtain advanced de-
grees compared to a national norm of 18 percent.

Eighty-four percent of the Model Secondary School graduates
pursue a postsecondary education.
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Additionally, there has been an exceptional return as demon-
strated by the employability of Gallaudet's graduates:

Two-thirds of all deaf individuals holding high-level professional
positions have Gallaudet degrees.

Ninety-three percent of our 1984 graduates were placed in jobs or
graduate training programs.

Unemployed rates for Gallaudet graduates of 3 to 5 percent are
significantly below the national average.

Over 350 employers participate in a nationwide cooperative
training program with Gallaudet, suggesting an increasing accept-
ance of Gallaudet students.

We have recently compiled the results of a nationwide survey of
Gallaudet’s graduates. From this information, one can further de-
termine that the return to the Nation from its investment is quite
favorable.

Male graduates’ median personal income is $23,500 versus
$28,100 nationally. )

Female graduates’ median personal income is $17,500 versus
$14,700 natlonalalf'.

The median salary of male graduates working full time is $24,000
while his hearing counterpart earns $31,800.

The median sal of female graduates working full time is
$19,000 compared to her hearing counterpart at $20,251.

Graduates’ median family income is $30,000 versus a national av-
erage of $25,300.

e are aware of and sensitive to the fact that quality programs
are achieved at a high cost. Thus we have focused our efforts on
becoming more resource efficient. We have implemented a number
of resource controls which include:

Reducing personnel by nearly 200 positions; competitively bid-
ding 85 percent of purchases; maintaining a 3-percent student loan
default rate compared to a national average that has always been
over 10 percent; and reducing facilities and equipment expenses by
$1 million, as cited in the GAO report.

We have also taken positive and increasingly successful steps at
developing private resources by:

Establishing the Gallaudet Foundation; raising $1.2 million in
1985; and entering into arrangements with private industry for
loaned executives, joint study programs, computer equipment
grants, and building renovation support.

Our view of the future is, of course, that Gallaudet will continue
to emphasize its instruction, research, and service commitment to
its ldeéa.f constituencies. In terms of instruction, our major objectives
include:

Offering high quality educational opportunities consistent with a
university approach; diversifying these opportunities beyond the
baccalaureate level; and offering new programs without dramati-
cally increasing the base budget.

Consistent with this philosophy, Gallaudet’s new directions fit
within a university structure and offer the following additional
educational opportunities:

Nondegree programs; a broader range of associate of arts degree
programs; a new school of management; increased offerings
through the Washington Consortium of Universities; and new grad-
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uate programs in profossional areas of der .nstrated need, for ex-
ample, mental health counselinsf and educational computing.

hese new programs, as w'll as existing or»s, must meet ena-
bling criterin of a comprehenr. ive evaluation prucess. Each program
plan will include outcome standards for its students, and proce-
dures for quality and cost assessmonts as well.

Gallaudet must also continue to uphold its public service commit-
ment. Currently, through the college and it3 three regional centors,
Gallaudet serves an additional 40,000 participants per year. This
comes at a cost-effective rate approximating $80 per participant.

During fiscal year 1986, Gallaudet will expand its regional center
network by increasing the number of centers to five. This network
will deiver many of Gallaudet’s programs throughout the country.
Our immediate goal is a 25-percent increase in extension programs
at a level of £0,000 participants.

As one of the few institutions that conducty deafness related re-
search, Gallaudet will continue to focus its efforts on useful and ef-
fective studies. The traditional orientation has beer: applied social
science research related to accommodation to deafness, but new di-
rections will achieve a more appropriate balance that emphusizes
prevention and restoration research as well. Considering orly the
impact on the two million profoundly deaf Americans, these re-
search programs are conducted at a relatively inexpensive $1.02
per person.

With its model secondary and elementary programs, Gallaudet
has a special mission to achieve. Its research and demonstration
mandate must result in a positive influence on the lives of all deaf
children, whether they be in center school or riainstream pro-
grams. The accomplishments are worth citing.

Eleven thousand deafness-related professionals, parents and stu-
dents garticipating in training seminars over the past several
years; 22,000 cocurricular products distributed to center school and
mainstream programs each year; and 11,600 subscribers to profes-
sional and student journals.

However, new services are on the immediate horizon which
promise even greater levels of support, particularly to the public
school teachers with hearing-impaired students in their classrooms.
These new initiatives include:

Distributing curricula and deafness-related information via com-
puter linkages; evaluating and distributing information on effective
computer-assisted instruction; and improving the achievement level
of high school graduates who aspire to college entrance through a
short-term postsecondary development program.

In summary, Gallaudet serves a national and international audi-
ence of hearing impaired persons and trains professionals, both
hearing and deaf, who work with thern. Gallaudet’s commitment
increasingly is to offer the widest possible range of educational op-
portunities to all its constituencies. To do less would be to retreat
from public trust. The college will continue to reach out through
new academic programs, through its regional centers, through re-
search and through technology. Gallaudet recognizes its responsi-
bility as a national resource and gladly accepts the challenge of of-
fering programs and services in the most effective mannes.
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Thank you very much. I will be happy to respond to any ques-
tions you may have.

Senator WEICKER, First of all, I want to thank you for working so
closely with the committee over the past several months. You have
been very helpful.

I know you are aware of the rapid decline in the number of deaf
students graduating from self-contained residential schools and a
corresponding increase in deaf students graduating from main-
streamed programs in public high schools because much of that
data is based on Gallaudet research.

What implications does that have for the self-contained elemen-
farﬁ t:;xd secondary school model demonstration programs at Gal-
aude

Dr. Leg. During the past few years, our research products have
been demonstrated throughout the country, and we believe it is im-
portant that we continue to provide these services nationally, es
cially since we see the decline in residential programs and an in-
crease in mainstream students.

Senator WEIcker. Gallaudet and the model secondary schools, as
well as the school for the deaf, both have been underenrolled in the
last few years. Gallaudet has 250 empty beds per year.

Why are the programs not full?

Dr. LeE. This fall, Senator. we have the largest enrollment in our
histor;;. This approaching fall, we expect to be within range of full
capacity.

In the wey of background, Gallaudet has beds for about 1,560 stu-
dents. A fcw years ago, the college asked the Congress for funds to
build a dormitory in anticipation of a rubella wave. At about that
time, the college discovered that it had an opportunity to acquire
the former Majorie Webster Finishing School in Northwest, DC,
which houses about 350 students. The college received that campus
without consideration from the Fedaral Government. As a result of
that, we increased our beds by about 200 above what we had ex-
pected in the way of an enrollment increase. We did not build a
new dormitory.

Similarly, we are seeing about 30 to 35 percent of our students
prefcrring to live off campus. This fall, we expect that the majority
of the 150 heds that are empty will be full by the increase in our
enrollment.

Senator WeICKER. Now, let me just get this clear.

You have your campus, its dormitories. In addition, you received
the Marjorie Webster School, which I gather is not contiguous to
your property.

Dr. Lek. No, sir. it is about a 22-r:inute drive.

Senator WEeickrr. Which has its dormitories.

Dr. LEE. Yes.

Senator Weicker. And that figure is included in the figure that I
am citing here?

Dr. LEe. Yes.

Senator WeIcker. Why do you not get rid of the Marjorie Web-
ster campus?

Dr. LEE. Those beds are full. These are prep students who spend
1 year in preparation before transfer over to the college.
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Similarly, we have spent about $8 million in renovation of that
Sroperty. t provides us with an opportunity to develop those stu-

ents who we believe can gain admittance to the freshman class of
Gallaudet. It is a separate program.

Similarly, we see, with the increase in enrollment, we are goin
to fill those beds. If we go to an enrollment of approximately 2,500,
we are going to need those beds and more.

Senator WEICKER. You have heard everybody, GAO, Madeleine
Will, myself, all question the state of your university as compared
to the state of the law and the state of the education for the handi-
cafped in this country.

would like to have you respond to what you have heard.

Dr. Lee. I am in agreement with basically what I have heard this
morning., Let me just share with you the information that I have
acquired within the last year of being President.

ere are approximately 5,000 deaf students who graduate annu-
ally from the secondary school programs. Of that 5,000 students,
the median rcading level is sliggltlﬁrabove the third grade. Similar-
l{l, there was a test study done by eston. They tested four groups,
the visually impaired, the hearing impaired, students with learning
disabilities, and physically handicapped. The students with the
hearing impairment scored the lowest on this test. Of that group of
students, about 94 percent of them lost their hearing before the age
of three, and this group of students really suffer in isolation with
rcsgect to languatge because of that low reading level. We see a
high percentage of this group at Gallaudet.

any of these students have the intelligence capability to score
higher in reading levels as those in mainstream programs. With a
note taker and interpreter they can compete and be successful in
most colleges and universities in this country. However, those who
are profoundly deaf need a high degree of support in order to make
the system as I described earlier. The spend 4 to 5 years at Gallau-
det. et'airaduate, and they earn jobs.
. If we take that/support away, or spread it nationally, somebody
is going to have to pick up that cost of working with these stu-
dents. But their reading level is so far back that it is not going to
be cost feasible. Gallaudet has the resources to work with these
(sltudents in order to get them up to the level so they can achieve a

egree.

nator WEICKER. Directors of the four regional programs claim
that the students that tl}:gir enrolled are just as hearing impaired,
have lower academic skills at entrance, have more secondary
handicaps and yet, in spite of these greater obstacles, they claim
employment placement rates that are just as high as yours but at a
fraction of the cost. And these programs are now turning down stu-
dents because they are full.

What is your response to that?

Dr. Lee. I am not familiar with the students they receive. I know
what we have at Gallaudet. I do not know the level of students
that thef\; are talking about. I just do not know.

I did have an opportunity, by the way, to visit California State
University at Northridge [CSUN] last week and see their program.
And, they do an excellent job out there. But it is a world apart
from Gallaudet. They have about 194 students, they graduated
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about 32 this year, and they are housed in essentially three tempo-
rary facilities. They participate in the mainstream of that universi-
ty which I think has about 28,000 students. And the students that I
met, they are able to compete at CSUN and meet the initial re-
quirements as other students.

Students at Gallaudet are scoring on the reading level at the
fourth or fifth grade, so I do not know how you reconcile it.

Senator Weicker. Well, I just asked counsel, these four institu-
tions get $2.5 million and Gailaudet gets $40 million. That's quite a
difference.

Let me ask a question in a different area. Could MSSD and Ken-
dall School accept multiply handicapped students, that is, deaf and
retarded, to fill the empty slots?

Dr. Lee. Yes, they could accept deaf children with other handi-
caps. They could and we believe they should.

Senator WEICKER. Why are 35 percent of Gallaudet applications
rejected if there are so many openings?

Dr. Lik. It is part of our admissions requirements. Annually we
receive about 2,000 applicants for enrollment at Gallaudet College.
About 85 percent are able to pass our admissions test, and we wind
up with about 30 percent of that. Thirty percent of the 2,000 that
apply eventually make it to Gallaudet. Some of the review of the
discussions we had with the staff, in the process of changing our
admissions requirements, we are going to vonvert to the standard
achievement test and use that as a base to make a determination
about these students.

Senator WEICKER. I have no further questions. I might have
other questions for response in the record.

‘ l[lRes;]mnsess of Dr. Lee to questions submitted by Senator Weicker
ollow:
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QuEATIONS SUnMITTED TO D LEE hy BRNATOR WRICKKR

Question: I know you are well aware of the rapid decline in
the nuwber of  deall students graduating Tram  self-contalned
resldential schools, and the corrasponding Increase In deaf astudonis
graduating from mainstreamed Dprodrams in_ publlc high schools,
because much of that data is based on Gallaudet research. As more
and more deal students attend mainstream programs in high schoois,

do you anticlpate problems attracting enough students to Gallaudet?

Answert Although there has been a significant ghift from
rasidential school placement to mainstream placament, Gallaudet does
not anticipate that it will experience difficulties in maintaining
its enrollment level. In fact, Gallaudet expects an increase of 100
students this upcoming academic year (1985/1986) and believes it
will maintain a range of its enrollment of 2,000 to 2,500 students
throughout the rest of the decade.

Gallaudet has always drawn a significant percentage of its
enrollees from mainstream settings, Indeed, many of the College's
graduates attended public school systems throughout their elementary
and secondary years before caming to Gallaudet. With the shift to
mainstream programs, Gallaudet expects to draw an increasing share
from these settings.

There is no dispute that distributing information to the
residential schools and communicating with their students about
Gallaudet's programs is a less complex process than communicating
with those students in the thousands of public achoul systems around
the country. Gallaudet has been improving {ts enrollment management
function to ensure that all deaf children ‘nterested in a
post-secondary pursuit have the opportunity to ¢ .¢ider Gallaudet's
programs.

Question: In your testimony before tune Appropriaticns
Subcammittee, you documented numerous cost saving measures in the
last 2 years which resulted in substantisl sav.ungs without impairing
program quality. I commend you for those acccaplishments., Those
cost_saving measures were Implemented after ‘‘he data on which tie
GAO report was based. How would you gue:: that your cost per
student figures have changed as a result?

Answer: The cost per student as calciated by the General
Accounting Office (GMO) is derived by dividing the total budget by
the total number of full-time equivalent students. Since 1982, the
year that the GAO measured, the College's budget and its enrollment
have increased by 21 percent. During this same time frame, the cost
per student has remained relatively stable, that is, significantly
below the cumulative rate of inflation.

The College has embarked on a resource efficiency program since
1982 that has allowed it to absorb inflationary cost increases in
certain cost categories without increasing the category's cost per
student. This has been particularly true in the cost areas of
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rosearch, lnstitutional support and physical plant operationa,

Alternatively, the College has been able to channel these cuat
savinga into enmuring that Jdivet sducational and student support
areas have been adequately funded to handle an increasing
residential enrollment,

Question: Do you anticipate more cost saving measurea in the
future? B

Answor: The Coliege is comitted to a program of continuing
resource efficiency. In fact, one of the major thenes of the
College's Master Plan waich will be implemented this Fall, is a
campus-wide comnitment to resource and coat-effectivenass, on
campus, this theme har been reduced to a simple attitude: doing
more with leas,

Over the course of t! : next few years, the College eéxpects to
achievae even greater nrficiuncies that offer the ability to absccb
non-discretionary cost .ncreases (e.g., utilities, food service),
and to free up existing resources in order to pursue new programs,
Specific areas of concentration will include the following:

1. The implementation ot a cost measurement information system
that tracks and identifies programmatic costs in specific
areas,

2, A review of the administrative staff to achieve further
position reductions,

3. The conversion of selected Pre-College faculty positions to
staff to avoid the long term investment of tenure,

4. The enhancement of revenue-producing functions (e.g., public
carvices, deafness-related litecature and peronts) which
defray wosts,

S. The use of in-house physical plant personnel to pecrform
required ren:vations,

6. The installatiun ani use of labor-saving administrative and
instructional support systems and equipment,

7. The use of existing TV technulogy resources and delivery
~ystems (».9.,, Public Broadcasting sScations) to supply
instructional and deafness-related programming to a wider
array of the dsaf population without incurring the
zraditional delivtcy costs (e.g., *tavel, facilities rental,
at.) .

Qu.svjon: Huw will those savings be used to strengthen wuur

current - i(-jramg?

43



46

AMuwort  Gallaudet has endeavored over the past few years to
ahsorb inflationary cost increases through cost efflclency ir.asures
80 that ita current instructional offerings could be maintained and
naw progcams could be eatablished. One of the beat axanplea of this
approach has been in the television production area where new
programs, and an acadanic melor, have been developed within the
previous budget. ‘™his 1s .u exclting curricular area for deaf
students that will lead to the attalmment of highly marketable
akille,

Ovarall, Gallaudat's Master Plan definea the "strength" that it
hopes to achieve. That {s, to becaw a comprehensive university
offering a varlety of educational opportunities to a broad segment
of the deaf population. These opportunities will be expanded to
{nclude a broadening of post secondary pursuits at the certificate
and associate of arts levels, Further, the College will continue to
anhance its graduate training programs that have graduated many of
the nation's deafness-related teachers and professionals. Finmally,
the funding of this plan will be through (1) a “continuation of the
College's resou 2 officlency program, (2) a re-allocation program
that channels ¢..sting resouices towards new applications and (3)
the develspment of private support.

Question: As you know, t:» number of formally organized post

secondary prograns for the dea: has increased signiflcantly In the
past 15 vears. Bocauu of your mandate for outreach and technical
ass[astance, you must be called on frequently to assist these

programs. Wwhat specific types of assistance do you provide, and
what specific programs have you workea with in the paat years?

Answer: Gallaudet is actively involved with other programs
around the country that serve deaf students. And, as these program«
have multiplied over the past 15 years, these efforts have
{ntensified. By 1{v large, Gallaudet is called upon to provide
assistance in the fullowing areas:

1. Curriculum development
2. Instructiral techniques
3. Student support services
4, Technical applications

wWith respect to curriculum development, Gallaudet has over 120
years of experience in developing a liberal arts curriculum that
leans toward graduates skilled in their chosen field of study as
well as in the general humanitles.

Gallaudet has also vigorously studied the instructional
techniques that work in a classroom of deaf students and iis
research is widely published and applied by teachers of deaf
individuals around the country.

Gallaudet has also devoted a significant degree of resources
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tovards the availability of acadamic and stutent support services.
For example, profeasionals in the fiold of'un call uypon Gallaudet'n
qounaeling center to week advice on th.e academic, social and
anotional considerations of teaching deaf uhildren.

Finally, the College has car i*ved jtself to applying
technology to the instruction of deaf in! ;{duala and evaluating its
effectiveness, In this regard, Gallsucet has explored the use of
television, videotape, sudiological and ~amputer technologies in the
classroam and ies regularly called spon to advise other programa on
the use of these tecnologies,

Question: What specific programs hive you worked with in the
past year?

Answer: The College recwives requeats for assistance fram a
variety of programs in the Unlced States an abroad, The roquests
are savetimes less complex in nature ant are handled quite
effectively by the appropriate units witiin Gallaudet College or by
its National Information Osntwr. The National Information Center
responds to 10,000 requestn for information on a variety of
deafness-related subjects eac” year fram programs, teachers and
professionals throughout the United States,

There is often more camplex requests for assistance requiring a
more formal approach. Examples of programs in this regard include
the North Carolina Consortium of 19 colleges and universities and
the University of Notre Dame. Efforts in North Carolina were aimed
at helping these programs to employ the Englis' camputer-assisted
instruction materials developed and successfully :° - - Gallaudet.
These materials are drill and practice routines & ° ’ to augment
a deaf student's skills in the area of BEx ~arar; a
traditional weakness of profoundly deaf individuale

Efforts at the University of Notre Dame have been .n the ares
of instructional advica. Similar efforts hav : also been conducted
through Gallaudet's National Academy and 1 = regional centers
located in California, Massachusetts and Kansz3. These centers,
hosted by community colleges, serve as regior :1 hubs to offer
training programs for profesionals working with ‘he deaf. 1In &
cost-effective manner, the training graduates of \'wre programs gc
on to train others throughout thesa revions,

Question: Will Fur assistance to guch prograns ch.ge in the
next few years and, 8o,

Answer: The College hopes to expand its ability to assist
these programs through i{ts regional center concept and through the
outreach efforts of its individual units. Gallaudet will esgtablish
two additional centers, most likely in the Southeast and Southwest,
to offer additional service delivery locations. The regional center
concept has proved to be a cost-effective way for deafness-related
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profesaionals to procure training fram Gallaudet without having to
incur the expense of traveling to and lodging in Washirgten, D,C,

Gallaudet also expects ita indlvidual units to continue to
reach out and assist other programs and professionala at an
increaning rate. For exawple, Gallaudet's Research Institute has
set goals for itself to establish and maintain an increased number
of collaborative relationships with other froo:m to ensure that
:0n:;ch results can be translated into easily understood practices
n the tield,

Question: What are the names of other post secondary programs
with whom you now have formal articulation DITOANONtA 7 '

Answer: Gallaudet has or is in the process of finallaing
articulation agreements with the following achocla:

California State University, Northridge
Northridge, California

Montgamery College
Rockville, Maryland

Mt. Aloysius Junior College
Cresson, Pennsylvania

Waubonsee Community College
Sugar Grove, lllinois

Seattle Central Community College
Seattle, Washington

western Piedmont Community College
Morgantown, North Carolina

Los Angeles Plerce College
woodland Hills, California

Howard County Jr. College
Big Spring, Texas

Ohlone College
Fremont, California

Johnson County Community College
Overland Park, Kansas

Northern Essex Community College
Haverhill, Massachusetts

Question: How many transfer students were there among the
students who entered your program in the Fall of 19842
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Anawer!  Gallaudet (ollege had 18% tranafer students entoll j§n
the vall of 1984.

Questiont  Pram what schogle did they most frequently transfer?

Awwars The following table ebows Uhw achools and the nuwber
of atudents who transferred to Gallavdet fram each school

fichool Nunher of Transfors
NTID 61
Howard County Jr. College 12

8t. Louis Community College
dorthern Fsaex Community College
Northern Va, Community College
Riverside City College

Broward Community College
California State University Northridge
Northwestern Conn, College
Western Plednont College

Beattle Community College
Miamni-Dade Community College
Waubonsee Community Colleqg:
Johnson Oounty Community College 1
Montgamery College

P.Q, Community College

Ohlone College

L.A. Plerce College

Mt, Aloysius Jr. College

Iowa Western Community College
Madonna College

Golden West Oollege

St., Mary's Jr. College

Western Maryland Community College

!
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Question: Duri FY 1985, 221 foreign stiventa are attendi
Gallaudet College, gf‘un Eovlai the Subcammittee with a breakdown

8 ng from t countries these students came.

Answer: The following list indicates the countries fram which
Gallaudet's international students came:

Argentina Malaysia
Australia Mex ico
Bahamas New Zealand
Bangladesh Nigeria

Belg ium Pakistan
Canada Philippines
China Portugal
Costa Rica Russia
Czechoslovak Sierra Leone
Denmark Singapore
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Ethiopia gouth Mricd

Py anoe gain

thana el Lacka

Gragt Britain Pueaden

Heiw) Kowsj Bwitsny lared

india o i wan

fvan fangania

faran) gamia

Jamaica Vietnas

Japan fanhia

Jordan

Kenya

Korea

Liberls

Questiont that  “22,000
co~cutricular pr %&8 Gach mr. Pleass ptcﬁaﬂ
the subcommitlee with a summaty of the name and numiwt of the moet
3 atr k) the rmlghﬂii of th s peofocta)
and, COBt , My, 0 [] e 1y 8, B

Aawert

™e Pre-Coliege programs pubunh mote  than 200

separate titles and distribute over 20,000 issuances each year to
pr Based on
litetimw distribution figures, the tollowing titles have been tw
moat frequently distributed:

ograms ,

1.

2.

LN

4.

5.

Title

Moadow,/Kendal 1
Social-Bmotional
Angesmrent Inventory
Manual ($11.00) and

Porma (82.00 per 10 forma)

KDES Qurriculum Quide
Secies ($6.95 to $29.9%)

MSSD Course Overviews
(88.50 to $9.99%)

Survival Skills
{817.995)

Roading Savwplers
Guides (83.95)
Student Books ($6.99%)

Feelings: Key to Values
Quide ($39.50)
Books ($2,50)
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teachers and atudents throwghout the countty,

Total Disteibution

22,12%

2,605

3,875

9931

3,418

2,366
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ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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7. Decisions! bDecisions!
Guide ($29.50)
Books ($3.50) 1,451

8. Getting a Job
Guide ($49.95)
Books ($6.75) 1,866

9. Career Awareness
Guide ($45.00)
Books ($6.95) 1,811

10, Introduction to Interaction
Guide ($31.95)
Books ($4.50) 1,473

11. Interaction, True Stories
Guide ($45.95)
Books ($7.50) 1,310

12. Parents' Guide to the IEP 4,269

By in large, half of the products distributed by the
Pre-College programs have been used by mainstream public school
teachers and students. The other half have been distributed to
residential schools, private shcools, state agencies and
individuals,

Question: The GAO raised the issue of minority representation

at Gallaudet. wWould you like to comment on that?

Answer: Gallaudet has taken an active posture to ensure that
the deaf members of minority grours have the same access to the
educational programs offered at Gallaudet. This is not only
reflected throughout the program areas of the College, but also as
an employer Gallaudet has demonstrated a camitment to equal
opportunity. Recently, the House Appropriations Sub-committee on
Labor, Health and Human Services, and Pducation cammended Gallaudet
for the extent of its minority representation.

The GRO report noted that Gallaudet's entering class for the
Fall of 1983 had a minority representaticn of 9 percent with blacks
constituting only 4.5 percent of the entering class. While this was
true for that year, Gallaudet traditionclly has a higher ratio when
considering its total enrollment. For example, in the academic year
1984/1985 Gallaudet's minority representation in the College was 14
percent with 8.4 percent being black.

At MsSD, 30 percent of the enrollment was of minority status
with 21 percent being black. KDES's student body was camposed of 67
percent minorities with 51 percent of these students being black.

. As an employer, nearly 30 percent of Gallaudet's employees are of

minority status and 26 percent are black.

Still, Gallaudet continues to seek out ways to ensure that all
deaf people know of and have an opportunity to consider Gallaudet
College as a post-secondary option, The College's enrollment
management unit has focused its efforts on distributing information
to guidance counselors in schools with heavier minority enrollment.
By this and other recruitment mechanisms, Gallauwdet will continue to
share an increasing proportion of thé deaf minority population.
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Senator WEICKER. Let me say this. We are not here to discuss the
fiscal year 1986 appropriations. I think points that are being raised
have a far greater implication in terms of Federal involvement,
Federal education involvement for the hearing impaired. And this
is a subject that is not going to be resolved, as I said, just in the
course of this hearing. But I think it is also fair to put you on
notice that clearly the state of the art is such that I do not think it
is a fair exchange for the taxpayer or for the hearing impaired to
sequester as much of the available resources for just a few institu-
tions. Also I think there is a question in terms of priority, and the
main question will always be raised in my mind, what is best for
the hearing impaired.

Now, I do not mind fighting for the dollars, You know that. I go
out there and get quadruple what i~ allncated by this or any other
administration. But I do not want . ve with yesterday and nei-
ther do the deaf. And I foresee that Gallaudet w .il always be in the
forefront as the premier institution in this area. I want to make
that clear.

But I also think that many more people aside from Gallaudet are
going to get involved in this process. So we will continue to work
with you.

Again I have to repeat that, obviously, cost-cutting measures, not
as to the quality of the education to be delivered, but whatever is
ancillary to that, to bring down the cost per student is fine, but
was not the purpose of this hearing. The hearing was to take a look
at the broad question as to where the dollars were to go. We will be
working with you.

I can tell you that next year, as I indicated to GAO, yours will be
a separate day of hearings and, indeed, I think I am going to get
these other people in here too and find out what they are doing.
We might as well have added if, indeed, there is no oversight proc-
ess in place at the present time, there is no reason why the Appro-
priations Subcommittee cannot do it. That is part of our job.

So we will be handling that in that fashion. The staff indicates to
me that you want to change the name of your institution from Gal-
laudet College to Gallaudet University.

Dr. LEe. Yes, we do. After 121 years, our programs have now
shifted more to a university structure, offering a variety of differ-
ent programs. We have the College of Continuing Education, Col-
lege of Arts and Sciences, two professional schools, graduate
schools. Similarly, we look toward a statement with respect to our
mission of research. And a third reason, we would like to do it for
about 8,400 alumni.

Senator WEICKER. Does that require a public law change?

Dr. LEk. 1 believe it would.

Senator WEICKER. I have no problem with that. If I can handle
that for you, I would be glad to do it.

Dr. LEe. Thank you, Senator.

Senator WEICKER. Our last witness is Dr. William E. Castle, di-
rector of the National Technical Institute for the Deaf, and vice
president of Rochester Institute of Technology.

Your statement in its entirety will be included in the record and
you may proceed in any manner that you prefer.
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STATEMENT OF WILLIAM L. CASTLE, DIRF "OR, NATIONAL
TECHNICAL INSTITUTE FOR THE DEAF, AND ,iCE PRESIDENT,
ROCHESTER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, ACCOMPANIED BY
MICHAEL 8. SERVE, DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND EVALUATION,
NATIONAL TECHNICAL INSTITUTE FOR THE DEAF; AND WEN-
DELL S. THOMPSON, ASSISTANT TO THE DIRECTOR, NATIONAL
TECHNICAL INSTITUTE FOR THE DEAF, AND VICE PRESIDENT,
ROCHESTER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

Dr. CASTLE. Yes, sir; I have accompanying me my immediate as-
sistant, Wendell Thompson, and Mike Serve, who is director of our
planning and budget activities.

Submitted for the record will be a complete statement and our
comments on the GAO report. I would like to summarize those two
papers in the following way.

lthough the National Technical Institute for the Deaf was con-
ceived by law more than 10 years before the passage of Public Law
94-142, it is in fact a very appropriate and perhaps dramatic post-
secondaﬁy extension of that law.

The National Technical Institute for the Deaf Act, passed in
1965, specified that NTID be designed as a least restrictive, main-
streamed, postsecondary, technical education alternative for our
Nation’s young hearing impaired population in order to reverse the
unemployment and underemployment circumstances prevalent
among deaf citizens at that time. The law specified that NTID
must be an integral part of an already existing institution of
higher education whicg offered at a minithum the baccalaureate
degrees. And so today NTID exists as one of nine colleges at the
Rochester Institute ofy Technology in Rochester, NY, which current-
ly :ervices 18,000 hearing students and makes available to NTID
students over 160 technical and professicnal programs at the certif-
icate, diploma, associate, baccalaureate, and masters degree levels.
All of these programs are designed to prepare our deaf students to
participate in the economic mainstream of our society and to com-
pete with their hearing peers. In any given year, between 17 and
23 percent of our students tuke their major programs of study in
the other colleges of the Rochester Institute of Technology; and an-
other 50 percent take some of their courses in those other colleges.

In addition to this substantial amount of educational main.
streaming, the RIT environment also ailows for the fact that most
of the deaf students share the same living quarters, dining halls,
and recreational facilities that the hearing students enjoy. Many
extracurricular activities are designed to gring hearing and deaf
students together, to learn about one another, to learn from one
another, and to accomplish common purposes. Study programs for
the deaf students are complimented with cooperative work evneri-
ences in business and industry and with a broad opportunity t« vol-
unteer services to the community.

NTID started with a class of 71 deaf students in 1968 and is now
serving 1,320 deaf students and 90 hearing students. Over and
above providing for the educational needs of these students, NTID
is also mandated by law to train new professionals to serve the
deaf; to pursue a program of applied research designed to enhance
the social, economic, and educational accommodation of all deaf
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people; and to undertake a program of information dissemination
which will keep its many significant publics well informed about
what is happening at NTID.

We are pleased to be able to say that in the last 17 years, we
have helped to reverse the history of unemployment and underem-
ployment for deaf people. Our cumulative placement record for
graduates who enter the labor force is 94 percent. Additionally, 80
percent of these graduates Fo into business and industry where
their average salary is nearly $19,000. Sixty-seven percent are in
white collar jobs and 20 percent are in management,

Since program oversight seems to be of concern in this hearing, I
wish to point out that the legal arrangement regarding NTID speci-
fies that the Secretary of Education is the Project Office for NTID,
and that there must be a National Advisory Group to advise the
Director of NTID on program and ptlicy. Secretary Bennett has re-
cently named Mrs. Will as his designee for serving as Project Offi-
cer for Program Oversight of NTID, just as the previous Secretaries
have named Ed Martin and Herman Goldberg, then Assistant Sec-
retaries for OSERS for the same purpose. Hopefully, she or her des-
ignee will continue to participate in our National Advisory Group
meetings held two or three times each year.

Regarding the GAO report on NTID, we believe the data are ac-
curate and comprehensive and yet can be misleading to an unini-
tiated reader. At the same time, we can appreciate the repeated
conclusion of the report that the programs with which NTID has
been compared are not truly comparable programs.

Finally, I would like to say that I believe Congress was right in
passing the NTID Act in 1965. I believe that the then Department
of HEW was right in selecting RIT as the host institution.

As we look to the future, we would like to redi-~e our attrition
rate, increase the percentage of minorities #¢ .  'oih students
and staff, increase the percentage of hanai- -taff members,
have a greater impact on other postsecon. . ... on seconda
and elementary programs for the deaf, increase vur outreach ef-
forts, and be given the allowance to adirit foreign students similar
to the way that Gallaudet College is allowed to do so.

I would like to point out that we have enjoyed interacting with
the Subcommittee on the Handicapped in lHealing with the over-
sight matter and the GAO report.

Senator Wricker. Thank you very much.

I might add, on the matter of minorities, and I meant to touch on
this with Dr Lee also, as it relates to outreach, I think, is enor-
mously important. Let me assure you it is not accomplished in the
New York Times and the CBS Radio Network, television network,
and Time maguzine, et cetera, that is not the way it is done. I
cannot believe that there is not a huge community out there that
just does not know what Gallaudet and NTID has to offer.

I think that comment by GAO is very, very significant. I happen
to know just by the nature of the individuals involved, nobody in-
tends that to happen, so that is not a concern.

I would suggest to you, and believe me, having encountered this
in many othe: situations, encountered it, for example, early on in
my senatorial career, on the availability of West Point and Annap-
olis and the service academies, the minority communities did not
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know and, really, there are different avenues of outreach to bring
this to your attention I hope you can utilize that in the future.

Dr, CasTLE. We feel, after wo have dealt with the rubella bulge,
we will be able to put more of our effort into that.

Senator WeICKER. Almost 40 percent of the appropriation you re-
ceive from the Federal Government goes back to your host institu-
tion, Rochester Intitute of Technology. At the four postsecondary
regional programs for the deaf, only about 8 percent goes back to
the host institution.

Why does RIT require so much money to host the NTID?

Dr. CastLe. There are many, many auxiliary services that are
provided to us that we do not provide for ourselves. In addition to
that, a portion of the $12 million you are talking about is ‘n the
form of tuition paid to RIT in that the deaf students who are en-
relled in programs in the other colleges of RIT.

Mr. THompsoN. May I add that roughly two-thirds of that $12
million that was referred to, goes for direct services that are pro-
vided to NTID for things such as food service, security, custodial
services, student health dormitories and the like. So when you look
at strictly administrative overhead which is all the regional pro-
grams are paying for, the charge at RIT is only 12 percent of our
budget, or one-third of the $12 million. This is not out of line with
the 8 percent charged at the Regional Programs and it is consider-
ably less than the 50.25 percent that RIT has negotiated with the
Federal government to administer research grant.

Senator Weickek. Well, plant operations and maintenance at
NTID, the cost per student is $1,518, and at RIT it is $545.

Dr. CastLE. That was pointed out in the GAO report. However,
$500,000 out of that amount was used for renovation of facilities in
urder to accommeodate the rubella phenomenon. When you exclude
that, it reduces the cost per student to twice the amount n-.~ded for
NTID facilities. This is because the square footage is gre..er per
student and we need a larger number of staff to accommodate the
students. The resultant cost per square foot for for both RIT and
NTID is nearly the same; just over $4.

In addition, all the facilities at NTID are air conditioned which is
not true of other facilities at RIT.

Senator WEICKER. Your present agreement with the Rochester
Institute, how long does that have to run?

Dr. CAsTLE. The agreement was sizned in 1966 with RIT and
HEW, and there must be an agreement in existence as long as
there is an NTID. _

Senator WEICKER. It has never been renegotiated?

Dr. CastLE. It does not have to be.

Senator WEICKER. That is a huge discrepancy, I must confess,
and the staff can fill me in, I do not have all :ae information on
the other four postsecondary schools. I can ase':ze you that I am
going to have it by the time I come around to next year’s apxxl'lo-
priations hearings so you can say what it is that RIT supplies. And
I am not in a position to say that it is similarly supplied by any of
the other four. But I will have that in hand next year. And, believe
me, with that discrepancy being 40 percent and 8 percent, I better
have a solid basis in fact.
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Dr. CasTLE. You can be assured that we will be prepared to give
you whatever detail g'ou need.

Mr. THoMpsON, I think it is important to point out though that
we are sharing in the library, the gymnasium, all the other ancil-
laxg'ebulldirws on the campus.

nator WEICKER. I understand that. But what I do not know is
that the students at California State University at Northridge, do
they share in the same things? If they do, you are not going to look
so good. If they do not, you are fine. I do not know the answer.

Mr. THOMPSON. Our basic contention has been that if we were a
free-standing institution, we would indeed have to employ ali of
those operative employees related to maintenarce and custodial
service, et cetera, and it may well be at a cost greater than what
RIT is charging us.

Senator WEICKER. Over the years, the NTID has maintained it
would be a conflict of interest for NTID to raise private funds.

Can you please explain the rationale of that?

Dr. CastLE. Yes; first of all, the public law passed in 1965 speci-
fied that such sums as are required to support the activities of
NTID will be provided by congressional appropriations.

Second, RIT was selected by the Secretary of HEW on the advice
of a special National Advisory Board to be the host institution. RIT
is out there constantly in the foray of raising private dollars, and
we believe it would not be appropriate to put us in competition
with that activity.

Senator WEICKER. Well, let me propose a question to you as given
to me by counsel.

When RIT receives $1 million in gifts and uses it to improve the
library, RIT then charges NTID an additional $120,000 in support
costs since NTID has 12 percent of the student body at Rochester
Institute. Thus it seems legitimate to ask why RIT does not give
NTID 12 percent instead of charging them an additional 12 per-
cent.

Dr. CastLE. I believe the position of RIT is that NTID profits con-
siderably from the presence of that facility and they are due some
reimbursement from that.

Senator WEICKER. Well, when RIT raises private funds, what pro-
portion is given to the National Technical Institute for the Deaf?

Dr. CastLE. We do not have any data to answer that question.

Senator WEICKER. Well, to get back to the point that, as far as
you know, there is nothing in the law which prevents you people
from going out there and raising privat: funds?

Dr. CastLE. Nothing in the law except the law does say such
funds as are required to be provided by congressional appropria-
tion.

Senator WEICKER. But again there is no restriction against it?

Dr. CasTLE. No, I would say not

Senator WEICKER. It seems to me that RIT is doing rather well
by this situation. I have no fault with that. I have no fault with it.
But under the circumstances, it seems to me that the overall agree-
ment certainly should be looked at in detail, and I am going to re-
quest that the staff do just that.

Did you make a copy available to the GAO and our staff?

Dr. CastLE. We have given it to the Subcommittee staff.

60



b7

Senator WEeickkr. GAO reports your annual attrition rate is .
almost 40 percent,

How do you account for that?

Dr. CastLe, This is a misleading piece of data in that report.
That figure represents the attrition that occurs in any entering
group of stud:-al - 1y take as many as 4 or b years for that
attrition raic w .

Mr. THOM#SON. I - auy new group of students in any one year,
such as the freshm n class, we v.ould have an attrition rate of
roughly 14 to 15 percent in the first year. If a class entered in 1980,
by the time they graduated in 1985, the attrition rate of that par-
ticular contingent would be approximately 40 percent. In any 1
year, of the total enrollment, which is the way thc GAO presented
it, and, in my opinion, misinterpreted it, the attrition rate is 19
percent, We started with, in that instance, 989 students in the fall
of 1982 and finished with 896 students by the end of the spring of
1988. That is not in any way 38 percent.

Dr. Cas7i. We are not happy with our attrition rate, and we are
studying our programs in an effort to improve retention an associ-
ate degree program in Occupational studies will help many of our
students who are unable to succeed in a traditional associate
degree program because of the liberal arts requirements.

Se!:latm WEICKER. I have further questions for response to the
recorda,

[The prepared statement of Dr. Castle and additional material
submitted for the record follows:]
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Depariment of Education
Statement hy the Dirsetor of the

Netiunal Technical Tnatitute for the beaf

Mr. Cheirwan and Membars of the Committea:

1 am plaased to heve (he opportunity to testify bafore this committea
on bahelf of the Natlonal Techuical Institutw for the Dasf. 1'm happy to
relate to you thet NTID hes msde grest strides in ite briaf history. As
you knov, tha Nstionsl Technical Institute for the Deaf (NTID), &t tha Rochester
Institute of Technology (RIT), was created by Congress in 196% to help roverse
the unesployment sud wndersmployment circuastences prevalant among deaf citiszens
st that time. 1In affect, wa vare charged with preparing deaf people to enter
end participate fully in the economic wainstresn and compate with thair haaring
peers. NTID ves designed es @ wainstraamed, post-secondury, technicel educe-
tionel alternative for our nation's young heering-impeired gtudents. As
one of nine collegas of RIT, vhich is the sponsoring institution currently
aarving 13,000 haering atudents, NTID ie eble to offer its students over
160 technical prograse at the Certificate, Diploma, Associate's, Bachelor's
end Master's lavela. This association with the Rochester Institute of Tech-
nology provides deaf students with e variety and quelity of programs which
vould not othervise be availeble. In addition to providing education directly
to deaf etudents, NTID wea chertared to provide training workshopa and geminars
to other profeasionale who aarve the hearing impeired. When combined with
the dissemination of information regarding NTID's research into the compuni-
cetions, personal/eociel, employment end educational aapects of deafness,
this treining permite NTID to heve en impact on deaf educetion throughout

America.

-2~

63



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

60

Our wajor secomplishmanis over the last 17 years hove heen avduciated
with maturing into the wultipurpose, national resource That we ara today.

NTID atavted with o cleae of /. in 968, and i» now serving 1320 deaf
students end 90 hearing students. s offar 37 technlcal programe st the
Certificata, Diploma, and lieuviate's degres lavel and over 132 professionsl
programs at the Bachelor's and Nu.cet's dagree levela,

W?I0 haa praduced a succassful wodal program for mainstreaming young
heering-impaivad atudants with their hearing peavs, through & variety of
‘’y.aroem snd dormitory srrangementa, integrated student and aocial sctivities,
wvoparstiva work aupariences, and employment in bus ' 2es and induatry.

NTID has ravarsad tha hiatory of unamploymsnt end underemploymant for
duat people who gradusta. NTID's cumulative plecement record of 94 percent
apeska for itaalf, Additionally, 80 parcent of our Kredustes who are pleced
80 {nto busiress and induatry, where thelr average salary is nearly §19,000.
Sixty-asvan percant of our gradustes who are in the lebor forca ere {n vhitas-
collar joba and nver 20 percent sre in manegement. NTID {s recognizad ae
¢ ploce whara tha netion's employers cen find highly competent humen resourcas
and technical sssistence and guidanca {n terms of how to succesafully desl
with a desf employee, Through {ts Netionel Center on Employment of the Desf,
NTID hea daveloped bensficiel working velationships with meny of the netion's
employera which fecilitataa the sccommodetion of deef people end people with
othar handicapping conditions.

NTID hes become & nationel reacurce center fo  technicel, peraonel/socisl,
genaral education end communications curricula which ere directed towerd
preparing hearing impeired individusla for eccommodetion in the economic
mainstream end which ere genereslizeble for use by secondery end other post-

secondery institutions.
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WTID has developed nuserous degrea and Non-degres progrems to respond
to jte treining mendete. These includs sur Joint Educational Specialiat
Progeam with the Universlty qf Rochiester, our AAD Projraw in Interprating,
our Profsesionel/Greduste Internahilp Program, & wyrisd of programe for ew-
ployars, pareats and edusators, end numerous (eculty end steff presentations
evound the country,

Through public {nformation end marketing sctivitias, NTID has hapt ite
verloue publics {nformed of model progrees and effsctive instructional etretegies,
A veristy of print end non~print educstional producte srs svallable to aducators,
employers, deef consumers end others. Additionslly, since 1968 NTID hes
conducted tours and inforwstioiwl seminere for mors then 62,000 paopls.

Ressarch ot NTID has hed perticuler benefits to desf studsnts, both
internal and externel to NTID, in four msjor sress. Fivat, systemstic follow
up of gradustes has been {nvelusble to NTID in monitoring inself. Under
NTID coordinstion, this systew hes baen extended to high school programe
for deaf students netionally. Second, in the belisf thet educstionsl disgnosia
end measurement ars sssentiel to effective instruction, NTID hes devoted
a major sffort to the developasnt of tests of scadenic end comminicetion
ebilitine of deaf students. Thess have bacoms the cornarstons of curriculs
in the communicetion, mathemstica end science sress, Third, NTID has schisved
national eminence in the use of technical medie for instruction of desf students,
based in large part on resserch snd developwent activitiss which blend edvenced
technology with expertise in instructionsl consideretions. Lasstly, NTID
ie looked upon for leadership in sstting stenderds for special fnstructionsl
services to mainstreemed desf students ot sll sducetionsl levels. These

services heve their foundetion in resesrch, development end evelustion.
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NTID hae devalaped ssvera) mejar initistives Lo raspunss Ly surrent
fosuss. Theso ieeume velete to mainteining currleuls thet ere technicelly
relovent, the praoviaion of educetions) outveech servicas and technicel senie-
tance support to esternel eudiences, the optinisetion of envrallment in the
poat=rubslle yeers, ond offirwetive ection prograsming for eteff and students,

Ssveral program eflorte ere undsrvay to prepers studente for smploywent
ond keep curricule abreest vith technologicel change. Thess inalude the
ideatifieetion of the seuses for studants eniting NTID withaut wny forw or
sartificetion and the davelopment of sction plens to sddress those cevscs
that NTID can anfluence. Nev curriculum options ere being explored end designed,
ingluding e 2asie Shille wrogrem, on Assoclete dogree in Occupstionsl Btudise,
snd & ove~ysar properetory progrem in eech of our thres technicel schoole,
Over tims, the percentege of deef studente in RIT beccelaureets end master's
degreee hes veweined essentielly unchenged while RIT'e etenderds heve risen
in response to iscveesingly sophisticeted tachnology. Articuletion sgreemente
with other RIT colleges ond support unite will srsure thet there ie No decresse
{n the percentage of daef students matriculeted in other RIT collagee. New
initietivee will be developed to fecilitets more thorough mainstresming of
deef students in co~cucrricular ectivities, dormitory programming, end gociel
fu. .ions. Pinel): ¢t hnicel curricule will continue to be modified to
sneure thet i {n etep with technologicel chenge end the neads of
the netion’s emp - This includes ensuring thet eppropriete technology
{e aveileble in the ies-ning leboretories. For example, Computer Assisted
Design end Computer Aided Menufecturing in engineering end ecisnce, computer
grepbice {u visuvel communicetion, end the office of the future in business

catsars.
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WYID'e primevy poek-subellie outreach sffart is to beione an educationel
shangs ogant by dissominacing oppliod reseasch tindings, goneroliosble éusiia
sulum preduete and procesess, ond tialning profsssinnale ta wtilise thow,
Thooo treinad will reasive taehninal ssaintonce oo they inplenent what they
learn ia their hame cottings: Uorviesn wil) bo provided o adurators in
primary, sen. dovy, and nthar past-secondssy pragrams for deef psaple, sepley~
ove of deatl pesple, daat adulee, doof RIT alumni, parente af deat individusle,
ond sehabilicetion end pleceneni pralessionsls.

Te optimies enroliment in the post-rubelle yesrs, erticuletion egrasments
will bo implemented with semmunity celloges thet fs.illtote the transler
of studente. This (o in veoponse to the fact thet the nusbere ol transfor
applications heve inercesed from ! (n 3 80 1 in ) in the pest year. Resruir~
ment marhating stratogics will bo developed and woditied to ensure snrollment
tergele ore mat with students who satiefy NTID'e edwiesions criteris Thie
includes provision of vorhehips on caresr options end coresr decloion-uaning
in residantiel ond mainstreomad sottings. Summer outresch seperisnces will
be offared to high school sophomores and Juniore which will provide students
with beslc coreor docision-nabing ekille snd ceveer enploretion sxperiences.
Workehops end shert cuurses will be provided to desf sdulte end slumni oo
they cew meintein or enhence their cerssre. NTID will continue to develop
strong working reletionshipe with the Council of Stete Adwinletratore of
VYocetionel Rebabilitetion end the Netional Associstion of Stets Director
of Speciel Réucotion. These efforte are directed toverd providing inforsation
to key professionsls who fecilitete the caresr davelopment of young deef
people. PFinally, we recommend thet the legisletion be amendad to sllov NTID

to edmit foreign studeots ot full cest.
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Affirmenive ackinn oftursn Folaind 10 abudauts and siaff will taclude
the vplasing of institutional affiymasive sction pasie sud the donign aud
inplunentation of stratogios o nchiove theos guels.

In summary, we ave vory proud af ous sccomplisiments 43 NTLO, but by
00 uaone Ao o satiofind, Ve baok with soger snti ipating ups & vl bee
fnitiotives in the haps thet o prablions 1het we havs idsatifiod will b
selved, At this PRint we hove Jittle tine 8 diacsues the GAD separi, by
we would Liks Lo svdmit wur swmseiis For Eha Tosusd,

M. Choirwan, wy collvoguas a6d 1 will be plesesd 10 sasver ony questivas

you way have.
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National Technical Institute for the Deaf

Coumments on the GAO Report for the Record

In general, he data in the GAO report are accurate and comprehensive. How-
ever, e feei strongly that judgement waa cacrificed to objectivity. The
GAO spent ton months atudying NTID, and yet offered no evaluation. It was

our impression from discussiona we had with them, that they were very impreased
with the way we operated and with the exte'rive management information that

we routinely collected and monitored as a normal way of doing business.

Yet when the final draft was iasued there waa nothing aaid about quality

and little qualification of the data preaented. Consequently, the report

is potentially misleading to the uninitiated reader aa an article in a recent
Righer Bducation Daily (HED) publication demonatrates. The essense of the
article suggests that the coats at NTID are extremely high with no mention

of the often quoted GAO statement, "Because of the lack of baseline information
on the costs of deaf education, we cannot judge the reasonableness of NTID's
costs.” This is an underatandable omiasion on the part of HED because there

is no mention of this qualification in the Executive Summary of the GAC Report,
but rather it is buried in the text of the report.

Additionally, it was well understood by the GAO that our costs were high

due to the extensive time, human effort and aupport costa necessary to educate
deaf atudents. Since we feel that the report did not adequately qualify

these costs we are submitting them for the record.

The tctal cost per student in FY82 as reported by the GAO was $19,712, (Note:
GAO figure was $19,771. To the best of our knowledge, this is a typographical
error.) It includes all the extensive support costs deaf students need and
incorrectly includes the costa of our other miasaions of research, information
dissenination, and training while at the same time excluding all the countlesa
publics served by these other missions. If the coats of these other missions
are removed, the cost per student becomea $13,936 based on appropriation

and $15,554 based ou total obligation.

The individual cost components are higher than those of other institutions
serving the hearing for many reasons. Our analysis of each component follows:

A. Inatruction: The cost per student of instruction was $5,995.

1. The atudent/faculty ratio of 9:1 is 3 to 4 times lower than
the comparison groups because of the need to allow faculty
time to deal individually with students. Deaf students require
a great deal of after-claas individual coaching.

a. Though there are no valid comparisons on this score Gallaudet
and the State Residential High Schools are the most compar-

able as they serve deaf students exclusively. Their
student faculty ratioa are 7:1 and 5:1.

-1~
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2. There is a large amount of remediation necessary to prepare
our atudents for technical programs and the advanced profes-
sional programs offered by RIT.

3. There ia the need for a lot of formal individualized instruction
due to the wide range of abilities of our students

4. Tachnical Education costs more than the Liberal Arta education
offered at many of the inatitutions that we were compared
to for the following reasons:

a. Labs require smaller classea due to the limited number
of work stations. For example, the number of drafting
tables that will fit into a classroom is limited.

b. Lab equipment requirea a large fixed investment and peri-
odic rerlacement to keep up with changes in technology.

¢. Equipment intenyive labs require set-up and maintens
personnel .

d. The manufacturing processes lab, for example, requires
approximately 1600 equare feet, yet only accommodates
8-12 students because of the aize of the machinery and
for reasons of gafety. Additionally, the costs are high
because of the need for reinforced flooring and sound
proofing.

e. The technical faculty cost more because they come primarily
from business and industry.

B. Academic Support! The cost per student of academic support was
$4,809.

1. There are a Number of extraordinary costs associated with
educating the deaf studente if they are to compete in the
mainstreamed academic programs of RIT:

a. Interpreting ($797)
b. Student note takins ($172)

2. Additionally, Academic Support includes instructional media
required by classroom teachers to present materials to vxaunlly
oriented students and communications systems support for
cation assessment:

a. Classroom Media ($900)
b. Systems Support ($395)

-2=
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NTID also has the wmandate to develnp new and Imaginative inatruc-
tional technology to help othar educators of the deaf nationally:

a, Instructional Technology for broader consumption ($3194)
Lastly, because 80X of NTID's faculty and staff come from outside
the field of deafness, and 50% of the faculty come from business

& indusiry, an extensive amount of Truining is required:

a. Training ($326)

In summary, ($3,384) or 68% of the costs of academic support are explained by
the above extraordinary requirements. If these costs are removed from the total
costs, the academic support cost per student is reduced to ($1,791) which is

6 times higher than public and private 2 year Vocational-Technical Institutes
and 4 times higher than those of RIT.

C. Student Services: The cost per student of student services was $3," °

1.

These services are provided at s level not réquired at other
colleges for hearing students, because deaf students lag 3 to

4 years behind their hearing peers .n thc development of personal
social skills, career decision making skills, communication com-
petencies and basic skills in math, scienca and english:

a. Peycological services ($118)

b. Advising and assessment ($369)
c. Academic Counseling ($457)

d. Student Life ($216)

e. Basic Skilis Development ($162)

Additionally as a National Institution, NTID strives to have
national representation which requires extraordinary recrui ment
efforts:

a. Recruitment ($155)

Lastly, with NTID's primary mission being employment, a treme--

dous amount of extra energy and expense goes into finding jc. .,
training employers and helping them design jobs doable by the

deaf. Also, large efforts are expended following up on our students
to see if they are in fact satisfying the needs of the employers:

a. National Center for the Employment of the Deaf ($273)
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Iu summavy, ($2,086) or 6’7 of the costs of student servicas are explained

by the above extraordiua. rrquirements. 1f these costs nre removed from

the total costa, the dtyu: .ul service cost per student is ..liced to ($1,298)
which 18 4 and 5 times b.gher than private and public 2 yn.. Vocational-Technienl
Institutions and 2 times higher than those of RIT.

D. Institutional Support: The cost per student of Ins:i*utional Support
wus $72,576.

l. The costs associated with institutional support are - uwarily
a function of the number of faculty & staff supported, rather
than students. While NTID's costs are three times higher
than the comparison groups, our student/faculty ratio is 3
to 4 times lower. Therefore, NTID's expenditures are in line.

E. Operations and Maintenance: The cost per student of Operations
and Maintenance was $1,518.

1. The year in question includes a $500,000 extraordinary expense
for remodeling. These renovation costs were incurred to accom-
modate the large increase in students due to rubella.

2. The costs associated with this category are solely a function
nf academic square footage. When looking at the most recently
rompleted year, FYB4, the operations and maintenance cost

1 a1 square footage basis was:

a. RIT ($4.05/8q. FT)
b. NTID ($4.63/sq. FT)

This difference of approximately 14X is primarily attributable to the fact
that all of the NTID space is air conditioned whereas the majority of the

RIT buildings are not. The fact still remains that NTID pays approximately
twice as much as RIT on a per student basis, which implys that NTID has
considerabley more space per student than RIT. However, this stands to reason
when you consider our class sizes are 2 & 3 times less than RIT's and we

have more staff to house.

F. Research: The cost per student of Retearch was $896.

1. The public and private two-year vocational-Technical institu-
tions with which NTID was compared do not have broad mandates
for research. RIT's research costs are somewhat masked by
the fact that individual faculty members do research which
is not separately costed out.

G. Public Service: The cost per student of public service was $814.

1. NTID is required by law to keep several significant publics
informed about itself, including prospective students, the
deaf community at large, parents of deaf people, educators
of deaf people, other educational institutions, rehabilitation
professionals, government agencies, both houses of Congress
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and employars. It is also required by law to tresin professionals
to serve the specisl neads of lasf people:

a. A.A.8, progrsm for Interpreters ($207)
b. 75% of Public Affeairs ($393)
c., Netionel Project on Csreer Education ($46)

In summary ($646) or 79% of the costs sssocisted with this category are for

the above extra~ordinary serviceas, If these costs ares removed from the total
costs, the public mervice coat per student is reduced to ($168) which is 3 and
19 times higher than public und private 2 yesr Vocational-Technical Institutions
and the same as RIT.

Tnere are two errors that wo found in the body of the GAO Report. They are
as follows:

A. typographical error on page 90 of the report, It should read as follows:

Type of Number of Percent of
Tuterpreting Service Hours Total Hours
In-class 37,349 80.6
Extracurricular 7,396 16.0
Administrative 1,579 3.4

Total 46,324 100.0

B. NTID's attrition rates were misinterpreted by the GAO on page 98 of the
report, The correct attrition rate on total enrollment for the academic
year 1982-83 was 19.4 percent and was calculated as follows:

FY83

1982-83
Fall 1982 Enrollment 993
Winter 1982 Enrollment (includes 27 off-term) 937
Spring 1983 Enrollment (includes 27 off-term) 896
Graduates who left (124)
Remaining at end of Spring 172
Fall 1983 Enrollment 1260
New students in Fall 1983 540
Returning students in Fall 1983 720

Off-term entry replacing Attritiom throughout year 54
Attrition end of 1st Qtr 1982 56

Attrition end of 2nd Qrt 1982 41

Attrition end of 3rd and Summer 1983 52
Total Attrition 1982-83 203
X Attrition 1982-83 19.42

The attrition rates in each program, as outlined on page 99 of the report,

are accurate but bear little relation to the general attrition of the inatitute.
Student attrition by department is most indicative of career changes that

over half of our graduates experience. They may leave one program and

enter another onme.

-5
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SUPPORT TO OTHERS SERVING THE DEAF

Question: As_you know, the number of formally organized
poat secondary programs for the deaf has Increased signiflcantly
in the past 15 years. Because of your mandate for outreach
and technical assistance, you must be called on frequently to
assist these programs. ﬁﬁat spacific typea of assistance do
you provide, and what specific programs have you worked with
in the past year?

Answer: Assistance provided to other post-secondary
inatitutions and/or professionals serving the deaf are as
follows:

A. Training:

Programs Audience/Location
1. "Doing Business with 1. Iastitute on Deaf-
Business,”" a day or ness, Northern
half-day program for Illinois University,
Vocational Rehabilitation DeKalb, Illinois.

counselors and placement
personnel. This program
emphasizes marketing and
employer development

strategies,

2. Marketing of Hearing~ 2. Thirty members of the
Impaired Buainess Eastern Business
Students Educators Association,

Boston.
3. NTID Internship Program 3. Fifty-four interns from

32 American and 7
Foreign colleges.

B. Presentations to Professional Organizations

Peraons Title, Description, Audience
o Battaglis, M, o "National Survey on Support

Services for the Deaf."
National Conference of
Association of Handicapped
Student Service Programs
in Post-Secondary
Education.
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o Bondi-Wolcott, J.

o Camardello, M.
& Inginga, J.

n

"Support HServicas Reads nf
Hearing-impaired Btudenis
Perceptions of Paculty and
Studente."” WNational
Confarance of Arsociation of
Handicapped Student Hervice
Programe in Post-Sacondary
Education,

"The Hearing-Impaired
gtudent in your Claes."
National Conference of
Association of Handicapped
Student Service Programs in
Poet-Secondary Education.

"How Business Lducators

Can Can Better Market
Handicapped Students (Deaf)
and How to Better Satisfy
Students' and Employers'
Needs.”" REastern Business
reacher's Association Annual
Conference.

C. Presentat.cos to Schools/Colleges:

o Armour, V.

o Brooks, D.

O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

o "Simultaneous Communication

Complement -A Novel Approach
to Language Teaching."
Michigan State University
Deaf REducation Program.

“Educational and Psycho-
Social Needs of the Deaf
Students in a Hearing
University." Faculty/Steff,
Univereity of Rocheaster.

"Training/Presentat’m of
Deafness' to the G-iduate
Department of Special
Education, Syracuse
University.
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o Caccamine, F.

o Chandler, B.

o Clymwer, W,

o Crimmins, D.

o Jenseun, J,

o 8ims, D,

o Wilson, J, &
Battaglia, M.,
J., Siple, L. &
Avery, J.

(op]
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"gign language in educationt
Selaction criteria and use
in daveloping cowmunication
skille." Central Washington
University, Special
Kducation Workshop.

YAn Ovecview of NTID:
Goals, stvncture/programs,
rasources, ‘asearch, and
project.” New York
Unlv.rlle.

"Effective Health Educatfon
for the Deaf", "Wellness: *
positiva approach to
Health", and "Selling
Wellness to Administrators."
Gallaudet College's
Strategies in Health
Education for Deaf Consumers
Conference.

"Apple Super Pilot
Workshop." Presented as a
part of Monroe Community
College Toaching
Rffectiveness Program.

"How Teaching Pedagogy
Affects Deaf Students and
their Writing." City
University of New York
English as a Second Ianguage
Council Conference.

Faculty Computer Workshops,
Salem College.

The use of intecractive
television technology in
communication trainiag."
Workshop given at National
Council for Graduate
Programs in 8peech and
Hearing Sciences.

Annual Support Service
Workshop, attended by 35
school personnel from
several states. These are
peraons responsible for
providing support services
to hearing-impaired students
in the "maintstream."
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o DeCaro, J, J. o "Some coneideretions in tha
placemant of hearing~lmpairad
graduates of posteacondary
programs." Paper presanted
at tha Univaraity of Tennassee
Postescondary Education Consortium
Rogional Conferance on Posteecondary
Bducation, Atlanta, GA.

o DuCaro, J. J. o "A framework for condering
recruitment of deaf etudante
to posteecondary education
programe," Paper presented
at the Univereity of Tennessees
Posteacondary Education Coneortium
Regional Conferance on Postsecondary
Education, Atlanta, GA.

In addition to the above, NTID will participate in a
conference of the California Aesociation of P-et-Secondary
Educators of the Disabled at Napa Community College in October,
1985, Information on employment of the deaf, support service
neads of deaf studente and other NTID nrograme and technical
assistance servicea will be provided,

D. A sampling of 1983-84 research and professional papers
having impact on othere serving the deaf:

Albertini, J,, Meath-Lang, B., & Caccamise, F. Sign
language use: Development of English and
comnunication okills. Audiology, 1984, 9(8), 111~
126.

Brown, P., & Dell, G. The xole of inference in effective
comunication. Paper presented at Symposium on
Cognition, Education and Deafness, Galludet
College, Washingten, D.C., June, 1984.

Castle, W, E., Jacobs, M, A., Smith, J. M., Kelly, J. K.,
McMahon, M. A. Aural/oral communication therapies
for young hearing-impaired adults. In W, H,
Perkins (Ed.,), Hearing Disorders. New York:
Thieme Stratton, 1984,

Coggiola, D, The identification and use of levels of
importance In text iearning by hearlng-impsired
college students. Technical Report NWo. 52,
Department of Educational Research and Development,
NTID, 1983.

Cox, J. Factors influencing higher education art faculty
attitudes toward four instructional innovatioms,

Unpublished doctoral dissertation, Syracuse

Uaiversity, 1984.

R
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Crandall, K. B., & Young, M. A. Preliminary report on

salectad questiony askad of administrators of 46

Tojrams !or the deal, Working paper, Ratlonal
sacﬁn!el[ Tnstitut

s Tor the Daaf, Rochester, N.Y.,
1984,

Dowallby, F. J., & Baur, R, Locus of cuntrol profilas of
mainetresmed students, ~WorkIng paper, NacionAl
Tachnical Instituta for tha Deaf, 1904,

Dowaliby, P. J., Enders, M., 8chragle, ', & Verlinde, R,
A comparimon of captionad, classronn, and prose
instruction for haaring-impaired lesrnors. American
Annuls of the Deaf, (in prass).

Dowaliby, ¥., McXee B., & Mahar, H. A locus of control
inventory for postaecondary hearing-impaired students.
American Annals of the Daaf, 1983, 128, 884-889,

Garrisc.. W, M., & Bsumgarten, B, 8. Microcomputar
apilications in basic skills assessment, Paper
prasented at the annuul meating of the Amarican
Educational Research Association, New frleans, Louisiana,
April 1984,

Carrison, W. M., & Baumgarten, B, 8. Microcomputers as
tools in educational testing. Paper presented at
the convention of the Alexander Graham Bell Association
for the Deaf, Portland, Oregon, June 1984,

Hayes~8cott, F., & Dowaliby, F. J, Academic motivation
to improve writing ekills: A comparison of normally-
hearing and hearing-impaired students. American
Annals of the Deaf, {In press).

Lichtenstein, E, H, Deaf working memory processes and
English languago skills. In D, Martin (Ed.), Workin
Papers, Interrational symposium on Coggjtlonlfzducatyon
and Deafness, Washington, D.C.t Gallaudet College,
1984,

Long, G. Research on schema training to improve
comprehension. Paper presented at annual meeting
of the National Reading Conference, Austin, Texas
1984.

Long, G., & Aldersley, S. Networking: Applications with
hearing-impaired studenta, 1In C.D, Holley & D. F.
Dansereau (Eds.), Spatial Learning Strategies:
Techniques, Applications, and Related Issues. New
York: Academic Press, 1984.
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studente. Papar Yraoontod at meating the Alsxandar
Oraham Sell Aasoclation for tha Deaf, Portland,

Oragon, 1984,

Low, W, Career Awarenaes Summer Program literature and
materlals Teview. NTID and Gallandet College, 194

avallable through ERIC and Gallaudet Collage Bookwtore).

Martin, K. & DeCaro, J, Thrae provequiaites to effective

placament: Dascription and {mpact report. Job
Placement Profesaional Supplement of the Job Placement
blvIslon, Nationa] Renabiliatlon Assoclation, 1984,
Summer and ¥all, 32-41.

McKee, B., Stinson, M., & Blake, R, Percoived versus

measured communication skills of hearing-impaired
college students, Journal of Rehabilitation _of the
Deaf, (in press).

Newell, W., Caccamise, F., Boardman, K., Holcomb, B. Ray.

Adaptation of the Language Proficiency Interview
(LPI) for assessing sign communicative compentence.
8ign Languaga Studies, 1983, uno. 41, 311-333,

Parasnis, I. Effects of parental hearing stitus and

Saur,

Saur,

exposure to early manual communicatioa on cognitive
skills, English language skill, and field independence
of young deaf adults. Journal of Speech and Hearing
Research, 1983, 26, 588-594.

R., McKee, B., & Neumann, L, A measure of the
classroom environment for hearing-impaired learners:
The development and pilot of the Learning Environment
Scale. American Annals of the Deaf, {in press).

R. E., Popp, M.J., & Isaacs, M. Action Zone Theory
and the hearing-impaired student in the mainstreamed
classroom. Journal of Classroom Interaction, 1984,
19 (2), 21-25,

Stinson, M, Motivation factors related to use of svpport

services by mainstreamed hearing-impaired students.
Working paper, Nationa' Technical Institute for the
Deaf, Rochester, N.Y., 1984,

Stinson, M., & Albertini, J. Linguistic and summarization

skills in reading text: Suggestions for instruction.
Paper presented at the convention of the Alexander
Graham Bell Association for the Deaf, Portland,
Oregon, June, 1984.
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Btinmon, M., & Btucklesa, K, R, Relations hetween
“erce

gommunications background an tlona of RTGD

and of inteynrating, Paper pressnted At the convent i o
ol the ATawander Uraham Bell Assocciation for the

Deaf, Portland, Oregon, Juns, 19A4,

Stuckleas, R, Impact of congenital rubella infectlon on
the aducatlonal system, Paper presented at

Tnternatlonal dymposlum on Prevention of Congenital
Rubella tnfection, World Health Organigation,
Washington, D.C., 1984,

Htuckless, E. R. and Walter, G, B, ftudenta deaf from
the 1961-1963 rubella epidemic begin to enter collage,
Volta Review, 1903, R%(6), 270-278,

Subtelny, J, D, Tntegrated spaech and hearing for the
hearing~impaired adolescent, 1In N. J. Laas (rd),
Bpeech _and Language: Advances in Basic Research
and Practice,” New Yorki Academic Press, 1983,

Camardello, M,, & Pike, D, Microcomputer applicatinne
for accounts payable and accounts receivable,
Bualneas Tgachers Asmociation Journal, 1983, 4(1).

Castle, D, L, Effective oral Interpraters: an analyaie,
In W.H. Northcott, Oral Interpreting: principles

and practices, Baltimore, Md.! Univeraity Park
Preas, 1984,

Castle, D, L, Telephone training for hearing~impaired
peraons: ampiifled telephones, TDDs, codes,

Rochester, N.Y.1 Rochester Institute of Technology,
1984,

Chandler, R, Wellness: a campus moves toward encouraging
positive .- gtyles, MHealth Education, in press.

Chiavaroli, K., & “-Kee, B. Computer-assisted career
guidance in hearing~impaired college students,
Personnel and Guidance Journal, in press.

Egelston-Dodd, J. Science for handicapped st idents
(Monograph Series). Washington, D...: wNational
Science Teachers, 1984.

Egelston-Dodd, J., and DeCaro, J. The role of spec.al
education institutions: NTID as a special program
model. Journal of Vocational Special Needs, 1984,
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Holeomh, 0, Ray, Lang, H., & nasile, M, 1, Guidelines
for effective communication among hesving-impaired
und hearing professionala in amall groun i s
American Annala of the Deaf, in prass,

Laung, H, G., Egelston=Dodd, J, & Hachs, M, C, Bclenre
education for hearing~lmpaired studanta in eightias)
priovition and projectionn, American Annale of the
Deaf, 1983, 128(6), AO1-ROA.

Lang, H., Pranka, F., & Albrecht, 8, POCUA in wathematipat
fundamental oparation and concepta and thelr unnuriylug
achema, LexIngton, Ky.i erlcan FrInting Houna,

Liebman Aron, H., Caccamiss, P., Outermans, L., Newsll,

W.y Pocobello, D, & Oglla, D, Technical sign manual

31 Carear Education. St, Petersburg, Fla.1 Modarn
Talking Pleture, 1983,

McCabe, H, Community services curriculum for the
handicapped. Volunteer Lesderahip, 1984,

Nace, M., Basile, M. L., Caasel, D., Maryuggl, B, A,,
Lang, H, G. and Holcomb, B, Ray. Cuidelines for
effective communicstion among hearing-irnaired and
hearing professionals in small group meatings.
American Annele of the Deaf, in press,

Nowell, W., Csccamiee, F,, Boardman, X., snd lolcomb, W,
Ray. Bessic 8ign Commynicstion curriculum. §{ilver
Spring, Md.:t NstTonal Associstion of the Deaf,
1984,

Outermans, L., Caccamise, F., Liebman Aron, B.,
Pocobello, D., Mitchell-Caccamise, M,, Newell, W.,
Meath-Lang, B., & Oglia, D, Technical signs manual
6: English. St Petersburg, Fis: Modem Talking
Picture, 1984,

Panara, J,, snd Schragle, P. Captioning at NTID:
Teamwork, techniques, te-hnology. Rochest:-, N,Y,:
Rochester Institute of Techonology, 1984.

Pocobello, D.,, & Boardman, K. A diagnostic approach to
sign communication evaluation. The Reflector, in
press.

Ritter, A. L., and Mopkins, K. A, A deafneas collection:
selected and annotated, Chicago, I11.,: American
Library Association, in press.
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Seoutsn. R L,

people. Danv " Taterstate, 1984,
gelier, b, ' Palnetreaming) most ruvered of aacred
cova, . € Notea, 1984, pp. 13-4,
Blus, B, B¢ ', W, & lymer, £, W, Cossunicetion

training - og intavactive video instruetionr the
DAVID syste  #* NTYID, Peyepectivea, |0R4, 3(4), &~
8. ) ' )

Weluh, W, Assessing the validity of survey data using
faderal data bhank4. iUnpublished manuacript,
Hochester Tusticute of Technalogy, 1984,

Wilson, J, J, The hearing-impaired student on your
campus. ¥, L, Wilson in Procesdinge of the 18,
confarence of the AsaociatTon on llandicappea

Btudent fAervice Progtams in Postascondar
¥ducation. CGolumbus, Ohlp, 1984,
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OUTREACH PLANS FOR FUTURE

Question: will your assistance to guch programs change in
the next few years, and 1f so, how?
Answer: For the past few years we have been focusing much
of our time and energy serving 30 percent more students than
normal, due to the rybella bulge. Given that this unusual
demand is due to subside in the late 1980's, NTID has
embarked on a plan to expaad its outreach efforts, Our goal
is to facilitate the career development of deaf people by
developing and implementing an institutional mechanism(s) for
providing educational outreach services to primary, secondary
and post-secondary schools that serve deaf people; employers
of deaf people; deaf adults and deaf RIT alumni; parents of
deaf individuals; rehabilitation and placement professionals;
and the other special publics, (See Attachment 1:
"EBducational Qutreach for NTID at RIT: A Preliminary
Proposal),

Additionally, this plan will be operationalized in
stages as ogutlined below:

Project Plan

A. Develop a project plan, by 1 November, 1985,
for a process that leads to
(1) 1Identification and prioritization of

outreach audiences and audience segments
and validation of their needs.

(2) Identification of NTID a* RIT models,
Processes and products t t can respond
to audience/audience segments needs,

(3) 1Identification and prioritization of
strategies to respond to audience and
audience segments needs,

B.  The project plan will include major steps and
timelines. It will also include a statement
of resources necessary to accomplish the
activities,

Specific strategies and timelines to accomplish each
stage set forth in the project plan are described in
Attachment 2: Outreach Development Process.
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ARTICULATION AGREEMENT

Question: What are the other post secondary programs with
whom you now have formal articulation agreementa?

Answer: Formal arti:ulation agreements to facilitate the

tranafer of deaf students from other post-secondary programs
for the deaf .t NTID are being designed with Johnson County
(Ransas) Commun.ty College and St. Paul Technical-Vocational

Ir te, Plans next year call for expsnding these

s wsxuts to include the Post-Secondary Education Consortium
& - ‘niversity of Tennessee in Knoxville, Minnesota

Ce {um of Post-Secondary Schools and selacted colleges in

Calitornia and Wisconsin.

TRANSFER STUDENTS
Question: How many transfer students were there among the
students who entered your program in the fall of 1984
and from what school did they most frequently transfer
‘(please show number from each of these schools)?

Answer: Below is the list of 56 transfer students for the
Fall of 1984 who came from 38 different colleges
(16 of the 38 are programs listed in the College
Career Guide and 13 out of 56 students were from

Gallaudet):

State College Number

Arkansas University of Arkansas 1

Arizona Arizona State University 1

California American River Coliege 1
Ohlone College 2
Pasadena City College 2
San Diego Mesa College 1
Pueblo Community College 1

Connecticut Northwestern Connecticut 1
Community College

District of Columbia Gallsudet College 13
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Florida Pensacola Junior College

Bravard Community College

Georgia Ployd Junior Collega
Iowa University of Iowa
Illinois Horth Central College

Northern Illinois University
Southern Illinois University
Triton College

William R. Harper College

Kanear Kansas State University
tlassachusetts Northern Essex Community College
Michigan ¥onroe County Community College
Minnesota St. Mary's Junior College

North Carolira Centra. Piedmont Community Coliege
New Jersey Brookdale Community College

Fairleigh Dickinson College
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New York

Pennsylvania

Texas

Utah

Wisconsin

82

Corning Community College
Rockland Community College

University of Rochester

Mt. Aloysius Junior College

Indiana University of PA

Houston Community College
Alvin Community College
Howard College

Navarro College

Richland Conllege

Utah State University

Utah Technical College (Provo)

Milwaukee Area Technical College

Total

56



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

88

ADMISSIONS POLYCY

Question: According to your testimony at the hearing your
annual attrition rate Is about 20 percent, Since you admit
Wwtudents only one time per year, len't thia an ineffcitive
uge of rasourcas In the ilater part of the school year!

Aneuot: Firat we admit students throughout the year, In
fiscal v:ar 1983 we admitted over 50 studente off-
term, whi:h minimized the decrease in our enrollment
from a fall level of 993 t, a spring level uf 896,
This is only » decline of 97 students cr 9.8
percent. “.s past year off term entiy kept the
difference fiom fo'l term enrollment of 1319 and
apring term entol:uent of 1161 to 12 perceut.
Consequently, the faci that-we have off~te 'm entry
has greatly reduced the effect of our attrition.

Second, your suggestion that this may be an
ineffective use of resources is a reasonable one,
and that is why we have our rolling admissions
policy in place. However, the fact that one or two
students leave a class of 12, does not necessarily
mean that there are slack resources, Few if any
classes are cancelled; they are only smaller.

OFF TERM ENTRY

Question: I understand tha. one of the problems with
multiple admissions times is that your technical courses are
8sequential. A student coming in the middle of the year would
be out of sequence, causing obvious problems, however,
couldn't those students be profitably envolled in peneral
education and communication classes, unt .l they are back on

sequence?

Answer: As described in the answer to the previous question,
we do have multiple admissions times. You are right
that ‘~‘a is problematic, hecause of the sequencing
of ¢ 3, and chat is why most of our off-term
entr -vdents are students who previcusly attended
NTID. Hhowever, we are already iu the procese o_
implementing pre-technical currici la in each of our
three technical schools which will inc.rease our
flexibility to deal with increased numbnrs of
students through out the year.
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VERLr LCATION OF GRADUATE FOLLOW-UP DATA

Question: During one of the mestings with my uwteff in
repsrstion for this hesrin ou mentioned efforts that were
Eoing4p1¢

and the internsl revenue ssrvice to o olliow up of
students. Whet's the ststus of thet work?

Answer; Completed dets tepes heve been sent to the Socisl
Becurity Administrstion (8SA), These tspas contein
information about s1l students who left NTID (greduates end
withdrewels) prior to September, 1982, The 88A will use this
information to give us @ report on the compsrative 1983
earnings of greduates end withdrswale from NTID.
Additionally, they will include the average 1983 esrninge of
graduates by degree, e.g., Certificete, Diploma, Associates,
snd Bachelor/Master. S8A hes projected thst this information
should be availsble to ue by the end of September, 1985,

Negotiations with Internal Revenue Service (IRS) were
much more lengthy than with 88A, but they were recently
completed. The IRS information will enable us to analyze the
following:

1. Graduate Earnings in 1982

2, Graduate Farnings by Program

3. Graduate Farnings by Degree

4, A comparison of earnings of our Baccalaureate
Graduates with a matched sample of hearing RIT
Graduates.

5. Unemployment Insurance received in 1982 b; the
Graduates.

6. 1982 Geographic Distribution of all Graduates.

Data will be on all students who graduated or withdrew prior
to September, 1981,

We are waiting for IRS to send us the specifications for our
tape that will render it compatible with their system. Once
we receive that, it should not take m~re than a month to
construct the tape. Their estimated completion date is late
Spring 1986.

We will then use these data to validate the st. .
"value added of a Degree as One Measure of Institut
Effectiveness,” which was submitted to your staff .

1985. An updated version of thst report will be . : ‘1
the Spring of 1986.
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ARSTRACT

This docwiant is submltted in rosponse to a request from
the staff of the Benate Subcommittes on the Handicapped for a
proposal regarding how the Netional Technical Inetitute for
the Deaf at Rochestar Inntitute of Technology (NTID at RIT)
might deal with sarviceas to populations and audiences other
than those deaf people who matriculate at Rochester Institute
of Technology. The document summarizeos current efforts and
proposes a framework, in the post-rubella years, to provide
educational outreach services and technical assistance support
to primary and secondary schoole, employers of deaf people,
deaf adults and deaf RIT alumni, post-secondary programs for
deaf people, parentan of deaf individuals, and rehabilitation
and placement professionals.

NTID's primary outreach effort is to become an edr-ational
change agent. NTID will share its applied research findings,
generalizable curricular products, mwodels and processes and
train professionals to utilize these products and processes.
Those who have bcen trained will receive technical assistance
as they attempt to implement what they have learned in their

home settings,

30
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TiE_RATIONALE

Very oarly i{n its history, the National Tachnical
Inr~itute for the Deaf at Rocheater Institute of Tachnology
(NTID at RIT) established the following principle with respect
to outreacht producte, proceasses and modelr to he disseminated
must be proven to be effective with the population NTID was
intended to serve. It was decided that NTID's authority should
be based upon demonstrated success.

The concept of outreach ie not new for NTID. NTID'e
outreach charge can be traced to the Policies, Guidelines,
and Application Procedures for NTID (March 1966). The
Guidelines directed that the sponsoring institution (RIT),
through NTID, should make "...ite facilities available and
aasist in the development of professional training programs
for the preparation of a) academic, technical and vocational
teachers of the deaf including opportunities for field and
practicum experience; b) rehab.li -tion specialists in the
area of the deaf and c) guidance and employment counselors
for the deaf. The Institutc should make avaiiabie ite
facilities, student population and the professional know how
of its staff for the supplementary and special training of:

1) psychologiata, 2) audiologists, 3) social workers, 4)
othera.

Tte orzanization of applied research and dissemination
of results ia also put forward in the Guidelines. The Guidelines
state that "the Institute shall be organized to investigate

problems having to do with the social, educationsl, and
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economic accommodation of deaf peopls, including evsluarion
and lmprovement of tesching technlquea an thass relate to the
educational ioalc of all deaf studente wherevar taught.”

The Cuidelines, therefors, desaribs a baslc charge for
outreact activities, Thie chergs relatss to provielon of
tralning for axternal audiences, rae sharing of reesarch
results and provides for making the profeseicnal expertise of
the NTID ataff and the uee of facilitles available to thoee
extarnal to the Rocheeter Inetitute of Tschnology. NTID was
conceived to ba a national resource by thoss individuale who
established it,

NTID's outreach responeibilities can aleo be traced to
NTID's eight baeic responsibilities. These eight basic
responsibilitias were adopted by RIT in 1967, with the
endoreement uf Ni.J's National Advieory Group end of the then
Department of Health Rducation and Welfare (DHEW) and relate
to the charga which RIT accepted through its agreement with
the DHEW. Thrae of the eight responeibilities relate
Jirectly to inetruction and e>cial accommodation, but the
other five focus on outreach. The ones relevant to outreach

are,

1. To encourige qualified deaf etudents to pursue

graduate studice at RIT or elsevhere.

-
b

-
2. To conduci :search into the nccupational and the

employweat related sepects of deafnees; into the

~duce .onal, social and peychological aspects of
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deafnoany and Into the communloation skills end

naads of duaf persona,

3. To develop and evaluste new Imaginative Instructional
technology for applicetion in the education of deaf

etudenta,

4+  To conduct training programs, seminare, and short
courees ralating to deafness for RIT pereonnel, for
graduste students preparing to work professionally

vith the deaf, and for other speclal groupe,

5. To dieseminate informstion regarding cucrreant NTID
practices concerning currleulum, coursss of study,
epecial services, and research findinge related to
those offering programe for deaf children and to

tina RIT aducational community,

AUDIENCES AND APPROACHES

Outreach Audiences

The firet audience to be addressed is primary and
secondary echoole for the deaf end mainetream programe acroee
the United States. 1t should be kept in mind that the prime
targete are deaf etudente and people who influence the career
decisione of deaf gtudents.

A second outreach audience will be employers of deaf

people, e.3., employers of NTID graduates and employers
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involved {u the placement and work accommodation of daafl adulta
nationally, The employer audience includes those who develop
and implement employment policies, auparvisory parsonnel, and
co-workers of deaf people,

A third audience in deaf adults nationally, {ncluding
NTID alusni, NTID hae a vesponsibility to ahsre its programs
and services with deaf adults as well as with NTID graduetcs,

A fourth audience includss individusla working with deat
people in other poat-sscondary schools ssrving the nesds of
deaf people acroes the United Stares.

A tifth audience is i{ndividuals who provide placement
services to dsaf youth and adults, including rehsbilitation
professionals.

A sixth and final audlenca will be parents of hearing-
impaired people.

General Approaches

RTID's efforts can be considered from two perspectives.
First, NTID can be considered a change agent, and secondly,
an information sharing and dissemination agent.

The question has been raised, "What has been the
influence of educational products and services on users and
students for vhom the products have been intended?” 1In
general, educational institutions have had a checkered record
in affecting change. Most institutions have focused upon
sharing research findings and information via publications in
journals, papers at professional meetings, and the like.
Sharing information .= important but does not often result in

interventions that improve existing conditions. A change
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agent approach {mpacts directly on the knowledge, kil Wi
attitudes of practivionerd, who in tyrn Influence the
idividaals they serve, T this wannar, organisational
policies and practices are changed, An educational
tu-cltution consldering outreach efforts must look at the
potential €or effacting change as a reaulr of hath change
agent and {nformation shering approaches,

Change Agent Approach, NTID will whare [te
generaliaable curricula products, wodele and processes, end
resasrch findings ueing a chenge sgent approech. That i,
professionsls will be trained to use NTID'e products, models
and processss, NTID, hovever, will resch out with treining
only in those ereas where NTID has ¢ recognised expertise and
where it has demonetreted success, Por example, NTID'e
faculty end eteff have developed expertise in the following
ereas ~~curriculum and {netructionel etretegies in
oathematice and sclence thet cen he used to lmpact on deef
students in eecondery nducation; job development etrategive
with employers that allowe deat individuele to enter end
successfully eccommodete to the work plece; uge of
instructionel technology to create instructional products
thet influence the tesching/lesrning process, including
captioniug of educetionel war-=riale; techniques that improve
the development of language; et astegies that influyence the
cireer development of deaf inoividuale; visuzl screening
procedurees that leed to diegnoeie of visua! problems eond
idenrification of educetion intervenrions to eddress the

problemes; end A»sign of educational fe:ilities for deaf

Yo
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tearnure, Products, processss and sodels mist havs proven te
be aucceasful at NTID priar to thels disesmination through
training, The trsining can occur as eithar pre-asrvier or
in-uasrvics tralning st NYID o elsowhsre, Thous receiving
training will necd, snd ba provided, technical aselatance en
they att mpt to utilise products, processas, and modelu in
thelr home asteinge.

Information Disesmination Approsch, WTID will alwo

eogage in sducationsl entennion by disseninating prine and
non-print producta. In addition, NTID feculty and
professionals will ehare their knowledgs by making
prosentations at professional confeseuces and worksiiope, It
should be noted} while fnformation ahariag (e important |t
dose not have tha potential for changing the conditione of

dee! people evidenced by the change agent spproach.
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efforte will therefore be directed towards a change agent
approach. For each of the rix target audiences, NTID'a
outreach approach will be as follows (under each approach are

selected examplas of current activity):

Change Agent Approach Information Dissemination
Approach
Pre-service In-service Print and Cmferences
Non=-print and |
Products Workshops
Technical Technical
Assistance Assistance
o Educational o Professional o Orientation o Csptioning
Specialist and graduate to Hearing conferencea
program internship Aids o Yaper
o Tutoring/Note~ o "The Un- presenta-
taker tapped tions
Training Resource"
o National o Journal
Pro ject Articles
on Career
Educstion

o Curriculum

Consulting
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AUDIENCE NEEDS/OUTREACH STRATEGIES

AND APPROACHES

The different audiences are presented below for our
outreach efforts,

For Primary and Secondary Schools

Over the past 17 ycars NTID has lesrmed muct shout the
math, science and English and career development competencies
needed by deaf people to succeasfuily select acd negotiate a
post-secondary education, NTID's Mathema'.:s, Physics,
Communication, and Personal/Social skill development
curriculum, as well as its career education progrsms, have
been developed to improve the basic skills, career decision-
making competencies and personal/social skills of deaf RIT
students. The joint Educational Specialist Program with the
University of Rochester prepares teachers with subject matter
expertise to teach secondary level deaf students in content
areas and in the delivery of appropriate educational support
services,

NTID proposes systematic educational extension efforts
in the post-rubella years, to provide secondary and primsry
schools with curriculum and materials that have been tested
at NTID. Further, NTID proposes sharing its expertise in
curriculum development, educational product devel pment and
instructional development with secondary and primary schools.
In certain instances, it will be necessary to adapt programs,

in response to student needs,

For Employers
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NTID has provided technical assistance to employers
through its National Center on Employment of the Deaf. For
example, in F¥84, 204 managers and potential managers of deaf
people were trained in techniques related to accommodation of
deaf workers in the work place. In addition, 55 additional
employers received targeted strategies to open employment
opportunities for deaf people in the printing industry.,

These workahope are part of NTID's efforts to prepare the
workplace for the hearing-impaired employee.

NTID proposes marketing the workshops it currently
offers to employers and moving away from the direct provision
of training services to employers. Rather, NTID will become
an agent for training trainers, i.e., training trainers to
use our packages to build the skills of line managers and
supervisors of deaf workers. This would allow NTID to use
its resources to train service deliverers rather than
continuing to be a primary deliverer of services to managers
and supervisors.

For Providers of Placement Services

NTID has an excellent record of placement of deaf RIT
graduates in business, industry, government and education.
Part of this success is due to the quality of placement
services offered to deaf RIT graduates. In effect, NTID has
been "doing business with business” for the past 17 years and
has developed a variety of strategies that have proven to be
very auccessful. For example, NTID has developed a training
program for vocational rehabilitation and job-placement

counselors that utilizes a marketing approach. This workshop
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narries continuing education credit and was offered to 55
rehabilitation and placement counselors in FY84. NTID
proposes the refinement of this workshop and its offering, on
a national level, to placement and rehabilitation counselors.
This would address the need of these individuals to develop
or refine skills to successfully place clients in the
economic mainstream,

For Deaf Adults and Deaf RIT Alumi

For the first time in the history of NTID, there are
more deaf RIT alumni than there are deaf people enrolled at
RIT. Data collected from graduates via the NTID Alumni
Feedback Questionnaire, and through individual consultation
services, indicate that alumni need continued career
development services and continued career advisement
services,

NTID proposes to develop and implement a system for
providing for the continued career development of deaf RIT
alumni and other deaf adults. The aystem must be developed
within the following context; NTID will generally not be able
to provide ail such services on the RIT campus, i.e., expect
alumni and deaf adults to leave their place of residence
and/or place of employment and come to Rochester, New York to
receive gervices. NTID will need to consider innovative uses
of technology to provide educational extengion to deaf
adults, e.g., telecourses, interactive'computer networking

and the like.
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For Post-Secondary Educators

There has been an expansion of the number of post-
secondary education opportunities for deaf youth at community
and technical colleges. Many students from these programs
transfer to NTID (currently over 20% of deaf students entering
RIT have some post-secondary educational experience). These
institutions do not, however, have experience in responding
to the unique educational needs of deaf individuals. NTID
has much to offer these programs by way of training with regard
to delivery of services to deaf people.

Twenty percent of NTID's students are fully mainstreamed
into the other collegea of RIT. To support these students,
NTID h;; developed and offers tutoring, notetaking and
in;erpreting services. Further, NTID provides extensive
counseling and career advising to these students. NTID has
played a primary leadership role in the delivery of such
services on a large scale to hearing-impaired students. We
therefore have much to share with universities and colleges
that have deaf students mainstreamed into their classes.

NTID proposes developing a systematic educational
outreach service for community and technical colleges and for
colleges and universities that provide educational
opportunity for deaf people. NTID will do so by building
upon its 17 years of experience in providing services to deaf
people in self contained and fully mainstreamed classes.
Parents

Interaction with members of one's immediate family

coatributes heavily to the formation of a personal value system,
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vhich in turn influences the manner in which decisions are
made and life goals established. Parents need to be assisted
in fostering the career development of their deaf children,
This pertains to educational placement at the elementary,
secondary and post-secondary levels, and to employment. NTID
proposes training pareats to systematically facilitate the

career development of their deaf children,
CONCLUSION

NTID's responsibility to assist others engaged °
education and employment of deaf people is part of -
mission and is detailed in the guidelines and legislac. s
that established NTID.

There is a need for NTID to remain mindful of its many
publics. As a national institution NTID has reaponsibilities
that go well beyond the walls of RIT. Educators of the deaf,
parents, employers, alumni and others need NTID's counsel,
and with the passing of rubella, energies need to be refocused
on the above groups. This is not to say that these groups
are not being responded to, but rather to say that NTID will

have the capacity to do more in the future.
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Attachment 2

L TREACS DEV?T.0PM...T PRICESS

Step A. Steering Committ Develon: plan

- Appoint Project Din

- Appoint Steering Committ

- Develop s project plan

- Present plan to Dean; Associate V.F.;
Director of Public Affairs

- Discuss plan with Executive Administrs-: »
Committee (EAC)

- Implement plan

Steering Committee Membership (Jim Carroll,
Chairperson of Steering Committee and
Project Director)

Elementary - Post-Secondary Employers/Providers
of Placement Services
Har:y Lang Chris Licata
Juwy Egelston-Dodd Karen Hopkins
parents /VR Adults §& Alumni General Public
I marT e —————————
Al Hurwite Tom Raco Marie L. Raman
Kathi Martin Heve~¢ Mann Ken Nash

Roch Whitman

Don Bsker (CCE) &X Offic.s
Bob Bsker

Step B. Audience Subcommittees Determines Needs snd

Determines Strategiea

= Appoint Subcommittee Members (each
Subcommittee shall have two
Steering Committee members and the Steering
Committee shall select other members of the
Subcommi ttee)
1. Elementary/post-secondary
2. Employers/providers of placement services
3. Parenta/VR
4. Alumni/Desf Adults
5. General Publics
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Step C.

Step D,

STEP E.

+ ponsibilities .. - ndience

Subcommj - e

1. Ident.f5 perceived n--.» of each audience
segment,

2. Ifen’ 1%y the status « t.€., NTID at RIT
s.:'s, processes,

pr .uts that cen revsond to perceived
#u -ace neasds,
3. Va. .ats needs of ¢ audience
’ tle -,
d -ite m dieace + ments,
3. Y eudie e s - at, identify
* £ 12 ‘eept . 0 audience gegment
K "‘1 .
A A [ THN ies in terms of
iy  ime/resource
Lsriites zitizes Needs and
e M4 .« order across audience
i LTI «ud Mtrategies,
LA T «8, Associate V.P,, Director of
" L e

Prese 1+ SAC

~ Preseant to Director and National Advisory

Group (NAG)

ean, Aseociate VP, Director of Public Affairs

D
Determine Structure

Design outreach delivery structure
Obtain Critique from EAC

Present to Director

Present to NAG

Implement
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2,
3.

4.

Se

6.

8.

9.

10.

11.

101

Timelines
Input regarding process from Director - by 15 April
1985 (FY8S)
Critique of process by EAC - by 1 May 1985 (rYs5)

Discuss process with TAP & CDP manager -~ by 1 June
1985 (rYss)

Select and meet with Steering Committee - by 1 June
1985 (rvss)

Present at NTID Staff Meeting the first week of
September or October of 1985.

Complete and approve project plan by 1 Novesber,
1985.

Present project plan to NAG - November, 1985 (¥Y86)
Outreach audiences and needs identified and
prioritized - 1 March 1986 (initial draft); 1 May
1986 (final report) (FY86)

Outreach strategies identified and prioritized - 1
Dec. 1986 (FY87)

Outreach Organizational Structure defined - 1 Feb.
1987 (¥Y87)

Formally Implement -~ 1 October 1987 (¥Y88)
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Unsolicited Written Testimony
In Support Of
Cversight of Gallaudet College And
National Technical Institute for the Deaf
Prepared for the
United States Senate
Subcommittee on the Handicapped
The Honorable Lowell Weicker Jr., Chairman
July 1, 1985
by
Robert R. Lauritsen, Director
Program for Deaf Students

S8t. Paul Technical Vocatlonal Institute
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8t. Paul Technlcal Vocational lastitute (TVI) Progras for Deat
Students s pleased to have this opportunity to submit written
testimony for the record as part of the Oversight of Gallaudet
College and the National Technical Institute for the Deaf. This
teztimony 1s presented to provide inforsation that reflects the
state of the Postsecondary Education Programs for Handlcapped
Persons and specifically that portion of the leglislation that
stipulates not less than $2,000,000 be provided for reglonal
education programs for deaf students.

St. Paul TV! would 1like to present two broad serlies of
statements. The (flirst serles of statements will deal with
historical perspectives, cost effectiveness., characterlistics of
students that are served and relatlionships with Gallaudet
College and the National Technical Institute for the Deaf. The
second serles of statements will deal vith unmet needs. Several
of these statesents will reflect our very serious concerns about
our abillity to adequately serve students during the coming school
years with a direct relationship to the much discussed rubella
bubble and the general popularity of St. Paul TVl and the
Postsecondary Educatlion Prograss as substantial prograss for
deaf stydents to attend.

SERIES NUMBER 1.0

1.1 HISTORICAL PERSPECTIVES

Poatsecondary Educatlion Prograss for Handlcapped Persons grew out
of initlatives of the Bureau of Education for the Handlcapped and
the ﬁohub!lltutlon Services Administration. These two agencles
responded to national priorities ot the nid=-1960’s that

esphasized .he need for one National Technlcal Institute for the
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deat 3png reglonal pestsecondary programs for deaf students in
intergrated settings. NTID becase a reality in 1965, llglofli
education programs for deaf students becase & reality in 1968-69
through five year research and demonstration grant avards jointly
funded and adainistered by the sursau of Rducation for the
Handicapped and the Rehabilitation Services Administration. The
original three prograns funded under this arrangement were
California State University at Northridge (Csumy, Seattle
‘s«unity College and St. Paul TVl. Ihe support service model
dcveloped by these programs in regional locations in institutions
that historically served only hearing students proved successful
in breaking down discrimination barriers, breaking down atereo~
typed job opportunities for deaf persons by opening up new
training opportunities, creating wide-spread institutional and
Community awareness of deafness, serving as an exemplary model of
support services for handicapped individuals to be replicated by
other programs, and in other ways reaping the advantages of
nainstreamed education.
CSUN, Seattle Community College and St. Paul TVI worked with
government officials and Congress in successtully acconplishing
the authorlzation for Regional Education Programs for the Deat
and Other Handlcapped Persons In the Education for the
Handlicapped Amendments of 1974. In 1973 the original three
Prograas vere funded with mpecified aums. In 197§ Delgado
College in New Orleans was added as a ;tlpulatod prograna. These
four programs remained as stipulated programs wuntil 1989, In
19803 Section 623 of now P.L. 98-199 waa opened for competition,

ana Delgado College was replaced by the University of Tennassee.
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1.2 COST EFFECTIVENESS

Postsecondary Educatlon Programs for Handlcapped Persons are cost
effective. For the 1984-85 academic year the Office of Speclal
Educatlion awarded St. Paul TVI Program for Deaf Students a

grant of $660,621. Using these funds as the base St. Paul

TVl secured additional funds from other sources in the amount of
$635,765. The cowbined budget for providing services was
$1,295,116. These dollars provided for the basic post secondary
education for deaf students, interpreter training, extensive sign
language classes. workshops related to deafness, and public awareness
programs.

The federal contribution buys full access into St. Paul TVI which
is a #30,000,000 facility with an annual operating budget of
$15,000,000 as well as into the entire state-wide area vocatlonal
technical educatlion . -tem of thirty three schools with physical
plants and combined bud_:ts in the hundreds of millions of dollars.
The combination of federal and state dollars funds the support
service model which includes preparatory studles, counselling,
interpreting, notetaking, tutoring and other related services.
The excess cost for educating one student s approximately $3,800
per year dependent upon the varlables used in computing costs.
Deaf students pay the standard tuitlon rates, purchase their own
books, suppllies and equipment and pay for housing accommodations.
These costs range from $5600 for Minnesota students to $7109 for
non-resident students.

Directors of Postsecondary Educatlon Programs have previously

presenteq Congresslional testimony that has 1illustrated high
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successful job placement rates and the payback In federal taxes

that graduatu of programs make in comparison to the cost of

training. Two of the current Postsecondary Programs are two
yYear postsecondary Iinstitutions, and two arn» four year
Universities, Depending on the length of the training program

the excess cost for training paid upfront will pbe repaid in a few
months or a few years.

Deaf students that are enrolled Iin the four Postsecondary
Programs automatically are included In the new technology that
the host Inatltuélons prov!de in maintaining state of the art
training. As one example Computer Assisted Design technology is
nov a minimum requirement for persons In Design Technology.
Equipment used in this training ranges upwards of $1,000,000 for
one training station.

1.3 STUDENT CHARACTERISTICS

St. Paul TVI has served In excess of 1800 students from 43
states, the District of Columbla and Canada since 19859.
Students have been enrolled In more than one hundred and twenty
five major areas of training. All students use one or more of
the support services that are availabl:. Students at St. Paul TVI
reflect the average deaf school leaver across America. We are
seeing the first wave of P.L.94~142 students. These students are
different than students of the past. The majority of our
student population are students with profound hearing loss. We
are seeing an increase in the number gf hard of hearing students
applying for admission. We are seeing more students who are
different {in their communication modes and social behaviors than

in the past. The average reading level of entering deaf students
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|s between the third and fourth grade level. Less than flve per
cant of entering students can handle simple arithmetic
computations. Over half of entering deaf atudents have one ' .°
more secondary handicaps. These handicaps include lear ..''ig
disablilities, cerebral palsy, visual impalrment, or orthopedic
impairment. Many students are soclally and/or e:tacnically
disadvantaged. We are particularly concerned about students who
have been sexually abused, and the numbers of students with
emotional problems, Less than two percent of our entering
students qualify for admittance at Gallaudet College or NTID. The
majority of students being served at St. Paul TVI! in 1985 would
have been served In rehabilitation facilities in earlier years.
1.4 RELATIONSHIPS WITH GALLAUDET COLLEGE, NTID AND THE FIELD OF
DEAFNESS

St. Paul TVI has many strengths and notable program features. We
are most proud of our ability to well serve students with limited
resources. Next we take pride in our relatlionship with a host of
service providers across Minnesota, the Upper Midwest and the
United States. St. Paul has been the site of major national
conferences In the fleld of deafness including the organizational
meeting of the Conference of Interpreter Trainers and the First
National Oral Interpreter Evaluation Certification Workshop. St.
Paul TVI has served and continues to serve as a catalyst for the
development of new services and programs for deaf persons and for
other handicapped populations. Numerous programs across the
United States are modeled on St. Paul TVI. Staff members of St.

Paul TVI are regular presentors at natlional conferences in the
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fle.u of deafness education and rehabllitatlion. St. Paul TVI Is
particularly pleased that two national conferences will come to
St. Paul In 1987...the Reglstry of Interpreters for the Deaf and
the Amerlcan Deafness and Rehabllitatlion Assoclation as well as a
reglonal conference of the Conference of Interpreter Tralners, Qur
relationships with Gallaudet College and NTID have been solldly
establ ished since 1969, Glven the disparity of resources we do
such sharing as Is possiple. The College Career Gulde publlished
by Gallaudet and NTID was conceived at a meeting at St. Paul TVI.
The Directors of the Programs of the six funded Institutions In
the fleld of deafness have a formal agreement known as the
Council of Directors. This group was responsible for the
publication “The Deaf Student in College®, and also for a serles
of reglonal meetings held throughout the United States on the
same topic. Staff relatlonships between the Iinstitutions are
excellent. Notable areas of cooperatlion are in the recruitment,
admission and referral process of students. St. Paul TVI
counseling staff rountinely assist In the testing procedures
required for Gallaudet College and NTID admissions. In Pprocess
i{s a student transfer arrangement between TVI and NTID.

3ERIES NUMBER 2.0

2.1 UNMET NEEDS

St. Paul TVI along with the other Postsecondary Education
Programs, Gallaudet College, NTID and others predicted and
foresaw the much heralded rubella bubble. The rubella bubble has
affected different institutions In different ways. In the case of
St. Paul TVI the rubella bubble is a three year peak for the

1984-1985, 1985-86 and 1986-87 school years.
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8t. Jaul TVI is NOT cop ng well with the rubalia bubble because
of limited financial resources. Durling the 1984-3% acadenlc
year we were not able tu provide fyll support services ag
requiread by students. We have 44 new prep students on campus this
summer. e have accepted 15% students for fall quarter,
winter quarter and spring quarter, 198%-86. We have over one
hundred applications on hold and are now actlively turning
students away. We are facing the real possibillty of cancell ing
summer school In 1986. In order to adequately serve students
that will be attending St. Paul TVI during the 1985-86 year, and
to reach some oOf the students that are already on hold we
estimate we would need an additlional $120,000. Gliven adequate
financial resources we would be serving In excess of two hundred
deaf students on a dally average which would be the largest
number of students we have .erved In our history.

2.2 We are particularly conc: -ned about the 1986-87 academic
year and what our position sho: .d be with ~vospective students,
thelr familles, their counselors z6' thelr secondary schools. The
four Postsecondary Programs designated in the fleld of Deafness
under Section 625 will end the current three year grant cycle on
June 30, 1986. Sometime during the winter or early spring of

1986 we will be submitting applications {or re~funding.

There are three concerns that emerge as we look ahead:
2.2.1 The four programs are facing open competition agaln In
1986. "
2.2.2 Open competition presents a major problen. Three of the

four programs have been operatlng continuously since the 1960°’s
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and have many asenlor quallifled ataff. In the open conmpetition
process senlor ataff are a liability slnce they are more
expensive than staff found In a start-up program. This s 2
serioua question that needs to be addressed. We belleve certain
safeguards should ‘'e bullt Into the open vompetlition process 3an
that programs are not penallzed for having senlor staff that are
placed hligh on the salary schedule but rather rewarded by the
expertise they bring to thelr positlons,

2.2.3 The amount of dollars, “not leas than #2,000,000 for four

reglional programs for deaf students® needs to be Increased if the

current programs are to maintaln exlsting levels of service. The

two optlons are to substantlally !Increase the amount of dollars

dedlicated to deafness or to substitute a reasonable percent
the dollars avallable. The Office of Special Educatlon

exceeded the 82,000,000 level for the current grant perlod.

I!s reasonable tO0 anticlipate they could enforce the $2,000,000
level for the next grant cycle which would mean substantlal

program reductlons for the 1986-87 academic year which will be a

peak year for students.

SUMMARY

The Committee can ake justiflable pride in Its continuling
support of Postse-ondary ‘ucatlon Programs for the Hand lcapped.
The Programs that have been funded In the area of deafness have
consistently proviied guslity, cost-effective and reglonalized

educatlon with high job placement rat;s; Callaudet College and
NTID serve a real purpose for Deaf Americans. CSUN, Seattle

Community College, St. Paul TVI and the Unlversity of Tennessee
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have also madv a aubstantial difference in the lives of thousands
of Deaf Americans, It I8 our hope that each of these slx
Institutions continue to Isprove the lives of Deaf Amerlcans In
the years ahead. We welcome ocontinulng dlalogue with the
Committes and the Office of 8Speclal Education In solving mutual

concerns In the lives of handlicapped Amerlcans.
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TERTIMONY BUBMITTED TU THE BUBCOMMITTEE ON THE HANDICAPPED IN CONJUNCTION
WITH THE JUNE 11, 1989 OVERBIUHT HRARING ON GALLAUDET COLLEGK
AND THE NATIONAL TECHNICAL INSTITUTE FOR THE DEAY

Submitted by

Ray I.. Jones, RdAD, Director
Nationel Centex on Lesfness
r1i4 -2'e Btets University, Northridge

June 28, 1963

This tsa. . won, » bast., upon my 25 yesrs of experience in the National leader~
ship Tralning sqram, and Dirsctor of the Nationsl Center on Deafness At
Culifornis 8%.e University, Northrigs (CSUN). In this tastimony, I wish to

(s) brisfly raview ths accomplishments of CBUN in asrving deaf Students, (b)
document the cheracteristics of deaf students sttending CSUN end our rocord of
service to multiply-handicepped and dsef-blind students, end (c) shers with

you some of our unmet nseds snd future plena.

BACKGROUND AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS IN BERVING DEAF BTUDENTS

Programs on desfness at CSUN hed their beginnings in 1960, when Mary Switzer,
Commissioner of the Federal Office of Vocstionsl Rehabilitation, invited Dr,
Boyce Williams and Mrs. Spencer Tracy to join her in a mesting to consider
the nesda of America's dsaf citizens. Their discussions revesled a most die-
couraging picturs. '

.+ « + In the previous 100 years, thers had besn littls improvement in the
education of America's desaf childran. They were still lesaving school
6 to 08 years behind their hearing counterparts academically, and with
limited vocational training, . .

. +» + « The fislds of sducation sn¢ rehabilitation wers polarized by the 100
year “oral-manual® controve.sy.

. + « . The low expectations of teachsers, counselors, administrators, and
parsnts presented insurmountable hurdlas for deaf students and/or
rehabilitation clients.

. « « +» There was only one post-secondary pProgram in America prepared to serve
deaf students, and only a small percentage of deaf high school gradu-
ates were going on to that program.

1
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oo Pt of Assiicats deaf atudents were leaving sohool teaglonlly undee~
sducated, and duowed to a Li‘etime of under-employsat oF unsmployment,

The challenge was clesr; wither break the viciuus oyols of under-sducation and
under-employwent/unemploymant, or the Federsl Government would need Lo fece the
costly Altetnstiven of extensive yahabilitstion ar litalong welters.

Mine Svitasr end har committee propossd Lo brask the gyele of under-education
and unemployment, by establishing a program that would Prepare a "nev breed of
leaders® {n the fielde of rehsbilitetion end sducation of the tesf. Thin proe
Gram would prepare leaders whos

+ + « « Heve confidence that desf pecpls sre capabls snd they can succeed

» o+ o KOW the probless of desfness from infency to edulthood

» « + s Can ses beyond the oral-manuel controversy snd provide communicstion
Last suited to the individual etudent or glisnt

+ + » « Know the Fesourcsse of the dssf community, as well as the resouioes of
governmant and community egenciss and who, through cooperstive efforts,
can focus theee rssources on the pressing needs of Ararice'e desf

+ + « » Will return to their cosmunities, qualified and pPrepared to sssume key
lendership rvles in rehabilitetion end sducstion sgencies wherss they
can bring improved ssrvices to desf students end cliente

In 1961, a five yeer grant wee swerded to Californis Stete Univereity, Morth-
ridge (then known es San Fernendo valley State College), to operste & Nstionsl
Lesdership Treining Program in the Ares of the Desf. This progras has just
coupleted ite twenty-£ifth year of operstion.

In 1963, ¢ "laboretory sxperience,® » typicel "ekunk worke" wae introduced, in
which studente were encoursged to develop "amini-projects® in which community
resourcee would be focused on meeting criticel nesds Of deaf sdulite, which they
had discovered in their intersction with desf sdults in the community. These
innovetions brought togsther the resources of the deef community, State Depart~
wmant of Rehabilitstion, sducstion, and businsss to bring improved services to
desf studente and rehabilitation clients.

A faw of the tnnovoil.om and proqrnln initieted et CSUN (now widely sdopted
throughout the nation), include:

1. A prograr of edult sducstion for the desf initisted by dest
etudents and s locel church.

2. Projects demonstrating how the telsphone could be sffactively
ussd by deaf persons.

3. Programs preparing desf persons to serve ss teachers snd lesdsrs
in the field of adult education for the deaf.

4. The development of comuunity information and copmunity inter-
preter referrsl centers. .

5. Formal eign language and interpreter training clesses in adult
education in university settings, which have given digrity and
visibility to the use of sign lang ge as an educational tool.
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B, A UAAChST Prepsration prodram Anitiated ot Caul which broke the
tragle pattern of discrimination that Mad, Fur 100 years, kept
deel atudante fron being crsdensialed s teacheia of the desf=~
it han now enabled vore than 150 deal ssudents to ressive teeching
credentinle and Master's Lagreas,

Y, A0 *in basket® workshap fur adminiecsstovs developed {ur the pro-
Qoram has, over the pest 20 ysare, given more than 1,000 publie
achool administiators a better underatarding of deafnosa ea thay
participsted in chie “simuiated® suparisnce vith deal and deafe
Biind olanamates .

8, Mumerous locel, etate, and nationa} warkelops and conterences that
hava been initiated by CBUN In such ereas sy

8. Adult Bducation for the [eat

b,  Telephone Comsunicstion for Deat end Desf-Blind Persosns
c. Legyal Mghte of the Mwaf

d. Orientation for Rehabil ~t ounsalore tor the peaf

s, In-8ervice Training for Department of Rahabilitation
Counselors for the Deaf

t. MHigher Bducation fur the Deaf--whoee hesponeibility?

g. Pazent Involvesant in the Aehabilitation of their Deaf
Child (TRIPOD)

Dissamination of the above innovatioas has besn extremely rapid, ee »tudente in
the National lesdership Training Prosram ses these innovetions in acticn on the
Univereity campua and in the comsunity, And return to their homee 8aYing: b 4
thay cen 40 it at Northridge, we can Go it in New York, Waehington, D.C., Flor=
ida, Oregon or New Mexico--yes, we can even do it in Ponape, ralau, or American
famoa“~-and they do it!

Probably the moet significant innovation coming from the Northridge campus,
began in 1964, when two deaf candidates were eccepted into the Mational Leeder-
ship Treining Program, againet the counssl of "experts” who warned that fev
deaf otudente had ever succeedsd in regular college courass, and that it vee
unreslistic to expect them to euccaed in a graduste program vhare they would be
competing vith hearing classmates. '

At the request of the deaf students, eign language interprétirg and notetaking
were provided, and with thies nominsl accommodation, they not only held their
own with hearing classmates, but also excelled in many areas.

The CSUN “"Model® of integrating deaf students into regular univeraity clasess
by providing interpreting and notetaking eervicee hae, eince 1964, been fol-
lowed by community colleges, vocational echools, collegea, and univeraities
acroes the nation, and is now spresding into numerous foreign countriea. 8ince
1962, the NLTP programs have gradusted 315 etudenta, of whom 107 are deaf.
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e pivanns ub duaf slassamtos added & Aov timenaiun to Lhe sducesicnnl
SHIMALE OF the progrem.  In tie (e pFaviaas classes, thepe had been 19 heav-
Ang stuients who Fegaraed thapael-es 49 frapeF IR 1 ke £i0ld of duafress,
Mo Lhey had two ¢ lasubatos who kiew Lhe prokilens of sdv #6158 and sehal e
tatian from Firgt=hand supesienie, They alao desonuatiated ChAt, wven tavush
IhaY wers deaf, ihay ware tylly copable at holding theil wue with haaying
clanamaton,

Tha I8 quacustee of Chis prodrar, Both Fearing and deaf o107, nave maved
quichly inta lesdarship poartions tn Pedeugal, State, asd Jueel Folabilicatios
And sduCatLon prisdoaml, WheEs Loy aks today, BEARGLING #lyhLEicant 1mpsOvekent,
INLO Lhe quality of education and Fehabiiitarion services,

The record of LaUN servises 2 desf atudents ineludes t’h-:- following

b. Bince 1964, the L.iversity hes awarded degscsa ty $50 deal atus
sents=~il% af these have besn Mastec's Dedreen

2. Ninetesn deat Mhetex's Lmgrea graduates, SRGOUEaYed Py their
Inatructory, have gons on to avcesasfully vimplets doctacste
PFOgIARS At wAYOr unjveraities acrosa the rountry,

Bince 1964, the COUN sperience in sarving deat students in regular univecaity
classes has claerly demuoatrated that qualified deaf stydenta, when given
BONLNAL SUHPOTE SATVIOER Of HLgN lanquage interprating and aotetaing, cen

1. Bucgeaafully cumpete with hearing claasmstaa in appronimataly %00
diffarent univeraity claassa aach asmeater,

2. Succeasfully complets Maater'a Deqgrees in an ineresaing nusber of
acadsmic fialda.

4. Upon complecion of training, £ind competitive oBploymant in
fialds for which thay have been trained,

In the proceas, they ars being changed from TAX CONSUMERS to TAX PRODUCERS,
and in a fev yeara of profasaionsl employsent, more than repay State and
Tederal investments in theix aducation.

All of the above programs and innovations have been accosplished with nominal
Federxal yaar-to-year grants and without one dollar of Pederal monay spent for
bricks and mortar,

CHARACTERISTICS OF DEAP STUDENTS ENROLLED AT CSUM

The following intormation regaxding the characteriatica of dsal atudenta
anrolled at California State Univaraity, Northridge, is taken from our Pall
1984 raport to the U. 8. Department of Education,

1. Approximately 90% hava haring Xouu'unqlnq from 60 to ovar
110 decibela in the hetter ear. About 6\ have mild to
modorate hearing jceaas {20-60 db).
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3. Apgsesisataiy S0 Fegart ather diaabilitien. In the Paat 10 yeses,
4 studente wivi were LR deat and blind have suecnanfully congleted
Wapter'y Gmgrene At CAUM; 1 15 the Nationel Leadership Tralaing
Progren, and 1 in the Twsshor Pivparetinn Progiam,

3. Thie yesr, \hey have som fiom 34 dLfferent atatae (in addition te
Califarniel, and B forelgn SRuRETIEN, o VOViTisd in their ¥sverds
af high achanl §radvation.

4. Appresimetely 19\ ez Binority students,

S, Winety pereent loas thely Mazing betare the a4 ot .

b, Beventy-thres attanded anrothar POet~sacendaly Erogrss prief [
sntelling ot CHN,

1. Undergrsduate deal studente were enrolled in 491 diffesent ¢lasmee
during Tell 1904, In 37 different eoademic M jure

8. M the yreduate level, deaf etudents wars entalled in 10 diflerent
Sraduate RIOYIANS .

9. Only 184 of the CAN undersraduate deaf studente qraduated from
residentiel schoola, with M3\ Sraduating from day schacl wlessee
or regular hegh schoola.

10, Thirty-two pervent of the desf yraduate studente graduatad frem

residentie]l echool programs vith 8% greduating from day
achool classes or regular high echoole,

SOURCES OF FUMDING AND COSTS OF SERVING DEAY STUDENTS AT CaUw

Bince 1964, funds to provide eigh language interpreting and notstaking for
deat etudenta have come from the following sourcees

1. Donaticns from local sarvice clube
3. Btate Department of Mehibilitetion

Case Services funds
A staffing and facilities grant
A block funding grant

At the present time, thers is nc direct Department of Mehabilitation funding
of support eervices at CSUN,

With the smeniment to the Rlems tary Secondary Educetion Act in 1975+ Bection
618, funds from the Federel Government became evailable for the firet time.
fhe amount of these Federal fun's ie ae follows: 1979 to 1984-1908,
99,320,425,
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The fitats af Californie s, slnce 1373, pravided "MAyamensation® funding to
SUPPEFE UBUN PERUFARA on dedfeadi. Thess Funde are tRsluded 1n the beiveieily
CARPIEALION GF conta pus Btudent, Which foF JWEI-LBE4 wers 13,309,

Puition foun ot CEUN afw §330 poi seamster fo5 full:Lime, senjdent #tudents,
oad §1,739 for panzEssideat and foseign studeats.

PUTURE PLANE AND UNIET NEEGS

For mise than 10 years, the C5UN pragren has wirked to achisve the thins
Fallowing Mma)oF goslus

b ™9 Feruit & *critival maes® af quelifisd deaf students ta insuse
CPLIBS saciel IRLeFaction hetween deat studente, and Iwtwesn
hoaring and deat gtudsnts,

3 10 abisin sdequate, oteble funding Trom State and Pedersl scuries,
which wauld assure deaf etudenta, not only from Celifornis, but
from serous the natinn, LMt SuPPOFt services weuld he svailable
W Les (500 Lhe time they enter CAUN o6 freshmsn, wntil they
eampletn thely Bachelor'e and/ox Noter's Degrese § to @ ye:ie
1ater,

1o T seek private funds o conatruet & bullding Lo huse the "nonn
viaditional® functions of Uw Mational Center on Deafnses at (sl
sinte thelr inception, pregrans ea deefnues st CEUN have besn
housed An temporary bungelowe.

We are making stesdy progress Ln achisving these three goals, ae indlcated by
the follovimg

1. In Fall 1984, 201 deaf etudents wers enrclled ot CBN,

3. Pedersl Punding (REP) comss LA three year grante, with (e amount
of fuading fluctusting from year-to~yeel, and from grent-to-grant,
The "Mool” of funds ellocatad to AEP programs remains oonstant,
allowing little lnnug An funding to meet increased enrollmsat.

3. CSUM has received more than §3 miliice from private donces to
construct ¢ building to house the Mational Center on Deafness.
An additicnal $2 mililon will have to be reised o coaglets
and equip the building.

We have identified the folloving four programs which ece urgently needed, but
which cannot be provided st this time without sdditiosal funds,

1. AMUnh._tmt-mchmuntnwmmmo,
. 30-40 deaf students wvio have just completed their janior year of

high sciol. Our staff, assleted by deaf university studente
would orient thes to the CBUN campus and its resources. These
deaf high school etudenta would learm from Eaglieh, math and
solance instructors, what ie expected of entering etudents n
these subject areas. They would be eveluated to assess their
basic skille (in English, math, and science), and in group

12}
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CnidB ) pig, B pREuuaded Ba FREuFL 56 Beid Righ achueis ki
i BiEE SHEIF GRRIRF IBRF FR VekE snapsed wRicE would fully peev
Phie fhei be siist Che Gullsds st usivieeity oF Sheis T

i T Colifurnia SEase URpvermity aad Collegen i swfpmatly
IhCEveRiRg thelT SAMISVIORE FRGUIFEAtS, 8] heve patitutsd ok
IREFONBIRYG knbml 9f FOMNIRRSY Leata which aFs, NRESFSWRANE Y,
G155 IIRALIRG ARAIEAL BOAs Ay iapiEed Bludnaty. T pepase duet
FLUMRES L0 pEat AdmIEELohE FRqUiTemERtE aid 10 pARE FEgelied
ampateacy 18ets, wn heed 8o eepiny apweiel IRGLFCIOER B8 Leach
pemmdied chebuws bR BaRiE Subject spuas, ARd wondyet ERall gFoui
JENiRAER ahd wabeheps ta RIspele Students tu labe spesific tagts.

3. Colifasnia, and Fartiselarly the BaR Ferkaide ¥iHioy, hove becups
TRe Mascd FoF R SVEF LRGYRAGIRG Puler of dusf miIgEerts Fiom
forsigh SouRtFIsn. These LaMIgants desperately aesd sisciel
adult SIvEaticn ¢1anses vhREe Lhay S4B LAl AmeEisen Bige Las>
gusie. Bralish, Wanie susvival shille, ste. e wuld like ta
JaBtiate & SFalov Advlt Kilucetion Prodien® for these deaf s
grante, and supioy somm of oWl SAIVEFSILY Asafrlmmigrant studmate
ta teach thess subjests,

4 Bince 1904, CHUN Nas Probably dvarded mire Masier's Gadesas 9
Anaf students LR any etheyF £0L1sge aF wilveisity ia ABRiice,
Using e T0c0TdE of Vhens highly suveesuful deaf stidesnts, we
woule ke G2 JRECIALE 4 CCOPREALIVE FeSedFch Prejedt with .
Nilde Bchiasinger of the Univereity af hea Prencisea, t» Adeatily
factars in the eadly lives of suvesssful CHN desf sLad “1n wbiih
Nave QOREIBUted ta their Nigh ackisvensnt oad suces # 8. o' Lt

The Meyioaal Sducstion progrons Rave, Tor sore \han two derodes, dem ¢ 1iod
that they san offectively serve deaf students in & widesrange of Isv. 7. .
elassts on 4 coat=affective Dasis. They Dave sled demunatyated that i
atae Leom Lho iy prograns san be comgetively employed ia fields for S
hove tiained.

Divectors of these Programs Ate now 4l the crasercads end urgently ¥
help of thie Committse to:

1. Initiete chanyes in leyislation (PL $-199) which will designais,
by nabm, the sstablished REP prograns and 1nsure thes of continued
funding to sepiece the current instability of three yeer yrents,

2. initiato changes in legislation suthorising funding for the BEP
Prograns Lo increass avellsble funds from the presesmt $1.9 sillice
to give REP proqrams additional fuads to ensoll additional nambers
of deaf etudents., and to Make LRPTOVeNENnts Ln services.

3. WMok to sse that Federel regulations of the Mehabilitaticn Servigey
Administration are strengthened and snforced, to Ansure that deaf
clientes chooning to sttend one of the REP programs will receive
the same devel of Fohab supjviet a8 deat cliente traditionally
receive who chooem to altead wallaudet or the National Teihsaical
tnetitute fox the Deaf.
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In closirg, I again want to commend this committee for the thorough study
you aca making =2 the post-secondary education of America's deaf students,
and for taking tire to read this testimony. If California State University
at Northridge cazn provide additional information or assistance, we stand
ready to help.
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LY LB,
#01-4A18121

25 January 1985

Senator Lowell Weicker

Chairman

Senate Subcommittee on the Handicapped
Senate Hart Office Building #113
Washington, D. C. 20510

Dear Senator Weicker:

In a recent telephone conversation with br. Karl white of your
office, iv was brought to my attention that an oversite visit
of Gallaudet College is planned and that testimony is being
received for that purpose. This action is timely and appre-
ciated by many, many professionals, state legislators, advocacy

groups, parents of hearing impaired childrer, and nearing impaired
adults who do not subscribe to the concept of permitting any
single institution, namely Gallaudet in this case, to be the
sole guardian, advocate, and public trust which affects the
lives of hearing impaired children and youth in the United States.

To many of us, the huge financial investment by the federal
government in this institution is out of balance and incompatible
with the spirit of the American way of life...diversity of
educational opportunity, freedom of choice, competition in the
free enterprise system, and accountability. The expensive
"custom-made" programs that are provided by the Gallaudet enter-
prises are simply not in step with the future of American education
for hearing impaired infants, children, youth congidering the
significant advances in audiclogy, education, medicine, and
technology.

As you well know, budget constraints, restrictions, cuts in
many social and educational programs are being implemented,
and there will be more to come. All areas of special education
are being affected. We know that all of us must tighten our
nfigcal belts" and work together to insure the continuatiocn
of federal and state funds to provide sufficient financial assistance
to help all areas of special education survive with meaning.
The availability then of financial resources requires full account-
ability of all agencies spending national tax dollars in assisting
individuals with disabilities become productive, independent,
functional citizens as much as reasonably possible.
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Although Gallaudet's FY 85 ia unknown to me, it can be assumed,
on the hasis of past funding pattecns, that it will be in excess
of 58 million Jo)lars. Surely then you can appreciate the national
dilemma of many people and agencies who have no federal support
or limited suppurt for educational and social programs for diverse
hearing impaired populations, much larger, of course, than the
limited population gerved by Gallaudet college. Postsecondary
hearing impaired students who desire to attend regular colleges
and universities in mainstreamed settings are obviously being
short-changed.

In no way do I discount the need for any reasonable educational
services which Gallaudet provides for a particular population
of hearing impaired individuals. 1t is vital for college bound
individuals to have this important option. However, it is time
for Congress to take a new look at other viatle possibilities
and opportunities in the education of hearing iwpaired individuals.
It is hoped that the subcommittee's action will be meaningful
and productive in this regard. Gallaudet ashould have no special
immunity from close public scrutiny in this endeavor. It should
lead to a more cost effective/efficient program.

The concerns which many of us have are listed briefly. An enclosed
v+ morandum with this letter will provide more detuil and documen-
‘#tion. Significant ones include:

l. Program Accountability

Do Gallaudet's practices reflect strict and responsible
adherence to its mission? 1Is this verifiable? Are there
areas that need re-thinking and re-defining in view of
input from the field? Consider the lack of confidence
that the college has from diverse populations nationally.
This includes parents, professionals, agencies, and hearing
impaired persons themselves.

2, Segregated Serxvices

At all levels of the program offerings, is the agency realis-
tically preparing students to interface, interact positively
with the world around them? 1Is the educational and social
environment conducive for students to Lecome independently
and productively involved in the world of work, leisure,
and service? 1Is it a "deaf world" only?
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3, Alternative and/or Duplication of Informational and
Supportive Services

1s it not feasible to review Gallaudet's outreach programs
and related tervices such as "Deaf Awareness" and "Schools
of the Future" from the standpoint of cost effectiveness/
efficiency? Cannot regional, state and local agencies perform
these services more cost effectively/efficiently?

4, Perpetuation of the "Deaf Image" "Deaf Heritage"

False impressions are conveyed to the public; negative
rather than positive attitudes aredeveloped and perpetuated.
Resentmenht is generated when the disability is emphasized
rather than a person's ahility as a valued human being.
It is a paradox that a segregated subculture has been created
and generated from a hearing loss. In 1985 ought not we
be concerned with people being involved with people in
a mutually 'satisfying, creative, productive environment?

5. Federal Aid and Foreign Deaf Students at Gallaudet College

To what extent, if any, is federal aid provided for students
from abroad?

The above-mentioned concerns are only a few of many that have
surfaced over the years., It would seem proper that from this
preliminary hearing a more thorough study and analysis could
be implemented over a longer period of time in order to receive
input on a much broader scale from professionals, parents, hearing
impaired individuals, members of Congress, state legislators,
and other responsible persons and agencies representing divergent
points of view.

1t would also be pertinent to provide hearings for all other
federally established and funded instltutions on a national
and regional basis. This would include the National Technical
Institute |for the Deaf, St. Paul Vocational Institute, Seattle
Central Community College, California State University at North-
ridge, Delgado Cowpmunity College at New Orleans, and any other
recently established agencies, Comparative funding patterns,
meeting appropriate needs, types of services offered and to
whom at what cost would be invaluable for future direction during
the latter part of the 20th century and the beginning of the
21st century.

Respectfully,

T Gl

t B. Bitter, Associate Professor and
oordinator, Teacher Preparation, Area
of the Hearing Impaired

221 MBH

Phone: (861) 581-8441
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Senator WkiCKER. Again I want to exrress to you, Dr. Castle, the
fact thut I think ycu are a great asset in terms of learning for the
hearing impaired ir this Nation. Indeed, if I suggested anything, it
is that the Rochester [nstitute might think very carefully on just
what an ssset vou are, both as an asset to them and the Nation.

Dr. CastLg. I _hink we at RIT understood this fact.

Senator WxickER. Well, they will know it when they get the
chairman’s word here. But I have got a great admiration for you
personalli' and also for your institute.

Again I think there are much larger questions that have been
raised here. The aim here is to raise some of these larger questions
in this context.

Dr. CasrLe. We appreciate what you are endeavoring to do by
this process.

Senator WEICKER. Thank you very uch.

The hearing will stand adjourned.

(Whereupon, at 11:16 a.m., the subcommittee adjourned, subject
to the call of the Chair.]
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